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THE COVER STORY
The book illustrates the journey of our success 
beginning from very moment the farmer leaves 

his home to seeds his crop to the business 
avenues it opens to every achievement, at every 

step, a deep sense of responsibility has been 
reflected by our financial performance,

manufacturing excellence, quality control 
measures and innovative approach to fuel the 

expectations of our stakeholder.
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Khushab District
Khushab is a combination of two Persian words “Khush” meaning sweet or tasty and “aab” meaning water. A common 
belief is that the Persian invaders, from the west, first used the word “Khush-aab” in admiration of the sweet and tasty 
water found in the historical city situated on the bank of Jhelum River. With time the city started to be known as Khushab.

Khushab is a District of Punjab, situated between Sargodha and Mianwali, near river Jhelum. Khushab owns mountains, 
deserts, luxuriant green harvesting land, lakes and river. People of Khushab are very hardworking and most of them are 
associated with farming and agriculture.

Geographical Location
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Jauharabad
Jauharabad is named after Maulana Muhammad Ali Jauhar, a prominent figure from the Pakistan independence 
movement. Jauharabad was developed in 1953 under a master plan. Because of its planned design, open spaces and 
wide avenues, the district headquarters of Khushab District was shifted to Jauharabad from Khushab city. Jauharabad 
lies at the confluence of the Thal Desert and the Pothohar in flat agricultural territory immediately south of the Salt 
Range, marking the end of the Pothohar Plateau and the start of the Punjab plains. The Jhelum River passes seven Km 
southeast of Jauharabad, while canals from Indus River irrigate much of its planes. On the west of Jauharabad lies the 
Thal Desert and on the east of Jauharabad is the Khushab Reserve Forest.
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Corporate Information

Registered Address
125-B, Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate 
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Phone No. 042 35213491
Fax No. 042 35213490
E-mail: secretary@jsml.com.pk
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Mr. Syed Muhammad Usman Afzaal
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Phone No. 042-35758573-74, Fax No. 042-35758572
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National Bank of Pakistan	 United Bank Ltd. 
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Parwaaz Financial servicies  Ltd. 	 FINCA Bank Ltd.
Pak China Investment Compnay Ltd.	 Allied Bank Ltd. 

Share Registrar
Corplink (Pvt.) Ltd. 
Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial Model Town, Lahore
Phone No. 042 35916714, Fax No. 042 35869037
E-mail: shares@corplink.com.pk

Islamic Bankers of the Company
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Ltd. 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Co. Ltd.
Faysal Bank Ltd. 

Mills
Jauharabad, District Khushab, 
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Phone No. 0454 720063-6, 
Fax No. 0454 720880

Audit Committee
Mr. Jawad Ur Rehman Khan	 Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg	 Member
Mr. Amjed Javed Aftab	 Member

Human Resource Committee
Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg	 Chairman
Mr. Syed Anwar Hussain Shahid	 Member
Mr. Ghias-ul-Hasan	 Member
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UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
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193-A, Shah Jamal
Lahore, Pakistan
Phone No. 042 35403550 
Fax No. 042 35403599
E-mail: info@uhy-hnco.com

National Tax Number
0225972-9

Company Website
www.jsml.com.pk

Sales Tax Registration Number
0409170300137

Nomination Committee
Ms. Faiza Iftikhar	 Chairman
Mr. Ghias-Ul-Hasan	 Member

Risk Management Committee
Mr. Saif-ur-Rehman	 Chairman
Mr. Amjed Javed Aftab	 Member
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Corporate Profile
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is a Public Limited Company, and has a 
privilege of being one of the pioneer sugar mills of Pakistan. Initially, in 
1953, it was setup by THAL Development Corporation of Pakistan which 
was later privatized and was listed as on December, 1973 at Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited and has been in operation for the last seventy 
years. Further in March 2013 the current management acquired major 
shareholding of the Company by taking over its assets and liabilities, 
paying-off old sponsors and renaming it as Jauharabad Sugar Mills 
Limited from Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited. 

This takeover enabled the Company to settle previous bank/grower/
creditor debts. A major Balancing, Modernization and Replacement of 
Machinery has been carried out thus enabling the Company to achieve 
stated capacity to 9,500 TCD of its currently operating crushing line-II, in 
addition to non-operating crushing line -I having stated capacity to 3,000 
TCD. The name plate capacity of the mill is 12,500 TCD. The new sponsors 
have shown their commitment by conducting this BMR and repair works 
through their own resources (interest free loans) and the Comapny’s own 
cash flows. The Company has successfully consolidated its Sugar Mills 
operations and financially strengthened its position over period of ten 
crushing seasons. 

The Company is playing its role for developing regional agronomy, 
generating employment and bringing happiness among the people 
directly and indirectly associated with it.
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We’re a diversifying 
organization, 
derived from sugar

Pioneer
We are among the first sugar companies to commence sugar production since its 
origin 70 year now.

Relationships
The Company is playing its role for developing regional agronomy, generating 
employment and bringing happiness among the people directly and indirectly 
associated with it. 

Energy
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is one of the leading sugar companies, having 
260 KWH energy production through solar besides 21.44 MW bagasse based 
power plants.

Capacity
Proud to be placed amongst sizeable manufacturers of sugarcane derivatives in 
the Country, which includes sugar, power, baggase, molasses & VF cake. Name 
plate capacity of the mill is 12,500 TCD.
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Vision Statement
To Sustainably produce green energy and 

chemicals by exploiting locally available raw 
materials and resources.
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Mission Statement
To continuously help, rise, self-worth of all the 

associated entities and stakeholders.
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Statement of Ethics and Code of Conduct 
Jauharabad Sugar believes that Ethics, Transparency and Accountability are the three 
basic pillars for its business and the said belief are reflected in Code of Conduct for 
Directors and Senior Management adopted by the Company. The following principles 
constitute the code of conduct which all Directors and employees of the Company are 
required to apply in their daily work and observe the code of conduct of the Company’s 
business. While the Company will ensure that all employees are fully aware of these 
principles, it is the responsibility of each employee to implement the Company’s policies, 
any contraventions against it will be viewed as misconduct towards the code.

The code emphasizes the need for a high standard of honesty and integrity which are vital 
for the success of any business.

Ethical Principles

Directors and employees are expected not to engage in any activity which can cause 
conflict between their personal interest and the interest of the Company such as interest 
in an organization supplying goods/services to the Company or purchasing its products. 
In case a relationship with such an organization exists, the same must be disclosed to the 
Management.

Dealings with third parties which include Government officials, suppliers, buyers, agents 
and consultants must always ensure that the integrity and reputation of the Company are 
not in any way compromised.

Directors and employees are not allowed to accept any favours or kickbacks from any 
organization dealing with the Company.

Directors and employees are not permitted to divulge any confidential information relating 
to the Company to any unauthorized person, nor should they, while communicating 
publicly on matters that involve Company business, presume to speak for the Company 
unless they are certain that the views that they express are those of the Company and it is 
the Company’s desire that such views be publicly disseminated.

All employees share a responsibility for the Company’s good public relations particularly 
at the community level. Their readiness to help with religious, charitable, educational and 
civic activities are accordingly encouraged provided it does not create an obligation that 
interferes with their commitment to the Company’s best interests.

The Company has strong commitment to the health and safety of its employees and 
preservation of the environment and the Company will persevere towards achieving 
continuous improvement of its Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) performance by 
reducing potential hazards, preventing pollution and improving awareness. Employees 
are required to operate the Company’s facilities and processes keeping this commitment 
in view.

Commitment and team work are key elements to ensure that the Company’s work is 
carried out effectively and efficiently. Also, all employees will be equally respected and 
actions such as sexual harassment and disparaging remarks based on gender, religion, 
race or ethnicity will be avoided.
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Holding Company 
Cane Processsiing (Pvt.) Limited

Subsidiary

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited
[63.66% Shareholding]

Cane Processing (Pvt) Limited (CPPL) registered under The Companies Act 2017 having 
its registered office at 125-B, Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore, was 
incorporated as on June 27, 2013. Mrs. Ghazala Amjad, the Chief executive officer, is 
the key sponsor having 99% of shares of the Company. Business activities of the CPPL 
includes trading of sugarcane products, sugarcane machinery, sugar mill machinery 
etc., to act as a holding company and to invest in other companies. Currently CPPL 
holds 63.66% shares of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited.

CPPL (the holding company) acquired Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited (KSML) by 
formalizing all SECP requirements as per rules. CPPL advertised in the Daily newspaper 
on Oct, 11 2013 declaring its intention for acquisition of the Company and its sponsor 
shares. Approval for transfer of shares was granted by SECP on Nov 28, 2013 thereby 
shares of KSML were transferred to the new management Company on Jan 1, 2014. 
Resultantly assets and liabilities of KSML were acquired by CPPL. The Sugar Mill also 
got itself renamed as Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited.

Group Ownership Structure
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 Our Culture & Core Values
We strongly believe that a conducive culture has the ability to 

express our strategic goals through values and beliefs. It opens 
the doorways to a more diverse and inclusive environment where 

employees find their purpose.

We have adopted a culture that imprints our values, and is aligned 
with our strategy.

Honesty
We believe honesty is an 

integral part of our working 
relationships.

Respect
We believe respect to each 
other will guide us in all our 

decisions.

Environment
We believe in producing 

environment friendly energy 
for a green future.

Safety
We believe safety must be 

at the forefront of all our 
decision making.

Teamwork
We believe teamwork 

empowers our individual 
strengths.

Integrity
We believe integrity is at the 
heart of our individual and 

corporate actions.

Our cultural strategy 
rests on the following 

pillars of our core 
values...
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O
rganizational  Structure



STRATEGY & 
RESOURCE ALLOCATION



Significant Plans & Decisions

Strategy to Overcome any Liquidity Problem
The Company’s ability of generating sufficient liquidity is its 
strength. This provides management the flexibility to fund business 
expansion and invest in cost saving activities. The Company 
has a strong capital structure which is adequately supported by 
shareholders’ equity. Moreover, the Company utilizes short-term 
faclities for cane purchase and working capital requirements.

The Company has a legacy of timely payments and there has 
been no defaults against any payment due to financial institutions, 
vendors, cane growers and government agencies, etc. The 
management is confident to successfully manage the liquidity 
position in future as well.

Due to Strong positions and commitments, the Company enjoys 
good business relationships with banks and financial institutions 
on its portfolio. The Company regularly monitors the debt-equity 
to effectively manage the capital structure and other financing 
ratios.

Capital Structure Adequacy
Management believes that there is no inadequacy in capital 
structure. During the year the Company has raised Rs. 5.4 billion 
working capital short-term lines and has paid timely, before 
deadlines. The Company has no long-term liabilities.

Significant Changes from Prior Years
There is no material change in organization’s structure, objective 
and strategies from the previous year.



Sr. No. Objectives Nature Strategies Resource Allocated KPI Monitored Future Relevance of KPI Value Creation for

1. Improve operational efficiency 
through cost economisation 
and enhance synergies among
functions

Short term to medium term Realign and implement policies and procedures 
for cost optimisation, implement systems and 
processes to enhance synergy against function.

� Human capital
� Manufactured capital
� Financial capital
� Intellectual capital

� Net profit margins
� Return on investment

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

� Different business
process

2. Sales growth and profitability Medium to long term Business growth and profitability initiatives 
through continued focus through optimization 
efficiency and capability enhancement.

� Human capital
� Financial capital
� Social and relationship

capital

� Profitability margins
� Sales growth with

industry
� Improved customer
� Satisfaction index

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

� Customers
� Stakeholders
� Economy of country

3. Optimum product quality to 
increase customer satisfaction

Short to medium term Implementation of strong quality assurance 
policies & guidelines alongwith certifications 
of Quality Management System QMS 
ISO 9001:2015. and Food Safety System 
Certification of FSSC 22000 and Halal 
Certification (PS 3733).

� Human capital
� Financial capital
� Intellectual capital
� Social and relationship

capital

� Product quality survey
� Customer satisfaction

index

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

� Customers

4. Maintain highest standards
of HSE and enviornmental 
sustainability

Long term Contribute positively to protect the enviornment 
by investing in projects to reduce waste, solar 
power project for mill employees for green 
energy and conserve water.

� Human capital
� Financial capital
� Social and relationship

capital

� CSR and sustainability
targets

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

� Enviornment &
planet

5. Effective human resource
management

Long term Implementation of effective human resource 
solutions through personnel development, 
creating proper environment for professional 
growth of highly skilled professionals, ensuring 
safe labor environment, competitive staff 
remuneration and social benefits in accordance 
with scope and quality of their work.

� Human capital
� Financial capital
� Social and relationship

capital

� Employee engagement KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

� Employees

6. Risk minimization through
business diversification

Short and medium term The Company continues to explore and 
evaluate new area to minimize business risk and 
diversification. The Company has established 
15MW enviornment friendly power plant and 
has plans to sale electricity to the government.

� Human capital
� Financial capital

� Profitability ratios
� Return on capital

employed

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

� Shareholders,
stakeholders and
employees

Strategy and Resource Allocation Plan



Sr. No. Objectives Nature Strategies Resource Allocated KPI Monitored Future Relevance of KPI Value Creation for 

1. Improve operational efficiency 
through cost economisation 
and enhance synergies among 
functions 

Short term to medium term Realign and implement policies and procedures 
for cost optimisation, implement systems and 
processes to enhance synergy against function.

	� Human capital
	� Manufactured capital
	� Financial capital
	� Intellectual capital

	� Net profit margins
	� Return on investment

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

	� Different business 
process

2. Sales growth and profitability Medium to long term Business growth and profitability initiatives 
through continued focus through optimization 
efficiency and capability enhancement.

	� Human capital
	� Financial capital
	� Social and relationship 

capital

	� Profitability margins
	� Sales growth with 

industry
	� Improved customer
	� Satisfaction index

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

	� Customers
	� Stakeholders
	� Economy of country

3. Optimum product quality to 
increase customer satisfaction

Short to medium term Implementation of strong quality assurance 
policies & guidelines alongwith certifications 
of Quality Management System QMS 
ISO 9001:2015. and Food Safety System 
Certification of FSSC 22000 and Halal 
Certification (PS 3733).

	� Human capital
	� Financial capital
	� Intellectual capital
	� Social and relationship 

capital

	� Product quality survey
	� Customer satisfaction 

index

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

	� Customers

4. Maintain highest standards 
of HSE and enviornmental 
sustainability

Long term Contribute positively to protect the enviornment 
by investing in projects to reduce waste, solar 
power project for mill employees for green 
energy and conserve water.

	� Human capital
	� Financial capital
	� Social and relationship 

capital

	� CSR and sustainability 
targets

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

	� Enviornment & 
planet

5. Effective human resource 
management

Long term Implementation of effective human resource 
solutions through personnel development, 
creating proper environment for professional 
growth of highly skilled professionals, ensuring 
safe labor environment, competitive staff 
remuneration and social benefits in accordance 
with scope and quality of their work.

	� Human capital
	� Financial capital
	� Social and relationship 

capital

	� Employee engagement KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

	� Employees

6. Risk minimization through 
business diversification

Short and medium term The Company continues to explore and 
evaluate new area to minimize business risk and 
diversification. The Company has established 
15MW enviornment friendly power plant and 
has plans to sale electricity to the government.

	� Human capital
	� Financial capital

	� Profitability ratios
	� Return on capital 

employed

KPI shall remain relevant in 
future

	� Shareholders, 
stakeholders and 
employees



Effect of Technological Changes, Societal Issues 
and Environmental Challenges

Technolgical 
Changes

Societal
Issues

Environmental 
Challenges 

Productive efficiency has been 
improved by the development 
and adoption of new production 
technologies by Jauharabad 
Sugar Mills Limited. We focus 
to develop and manufacture 
high-quality products that meet 
all regulatory requirements, 
and pursue quality beyond 
compliance in both our products 
and processes. Therefore, 
minimal complaints are from 
our customers. We work 
regularly to keep updating 
ourselves with technological 
advancements to produce 
under the highest standards and 
maintain all relevant technical 
and professional standards. 
The Company is running SARP 
system especially designed for 
sugar industry. The Company 
is focused on helping the 
farming community to improve 
crop yields through employing 
modern farming techniques and 
ensuring better returns.

Social issues are well taken care 
at priority by JSML management 
by investing in technical, 
administrative and financial 
assistance to the farmers and 
people living in surrounding areas. 
However, outputs to this investment 
are uncertain, but a clear strategy 
and program of public interventions 
is imperative. Without it, the farmers 
of the region face the prospect 
of rising poverty and associated 
social problems. Accordingly, 
the societal issues relating to 
education, health and poverty 
alleviation are part of its strategic 
plans. While for the employees, the 
Company has adequate health, 
safety and environment related 
policies and procedures; for the 
society at large, Company takes 
part in various activities, capacity 
building programs, vocational 
training programs, sponsorship of 
schools, special clinics and other 
health related initiatives.

Environmental factors refer to 
an organization’s environmental 
impact(s) and risk management 
practices. JSML has strived to 
work for the betterment of the 
environment and Investing 
in environmental, social, and 
governance (ESG). Priority of JSML’s 
management is to maintain highest 
standards of HSE, environmental 
protection and catering the 
social welfare requirements of 
the communities inhabiting the 
area of operations. Every year 
500 to 1,000 trees planted in mills 
area and surrounding to improve 
shared environment. During the 
year company has started a new 
environmentally friendly solar 
power project of 260 KV for mills 
labor colony as an initiative of green 
energy and has plans to enhance 
to project to 1000 KV. Moreover, 
the Company has established 
another environment friendly 
15MV power plant works on by-
product of sugarcane bagasse, to 
meet production requirements and 
to support government by selling 
green energy in future.
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Regular Monitoring
Specific Processes Used to Make Strategic 
Decisions
Strategic objectives serve an organization ambition which can be found in its vision and mission statements. These statements 
together describe the main thrust of the Company and its ultimate goal. At Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited we have blend of 
talented management team and Board of Directors as our key to make strategic decisions. In this regard JSML used following 
process for decision making:

	� Identification and analysis of opportunity or threats
	� Properly gathering of relevant information from sources
	� Third party evaluation and market study, where needed
	� Opportunity cost evaluation of alternative options 
	� Evaluation and discussion for the final options, and approval by the Board of Directors
	� Regular monitoring of plan and variance calculation where needed

How to Establish and Monitor Culture of the Organization
	� The cultural framework of any organization defines the company’s vision and the guideline it has established to achieve 

that vision. 
	� Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited always emphasizes in building value chain work culture. We believe in developing our 

valuable workforce, enabling them to deliver their optimal best; helping them collaborate with each other for reliable results 
and instigating a never give up attitude with a consistent reinforcement of being proactive in dealing with all situations.

	� We evaluate our employees’ performance against annual goals, achievements & professional developments.

Company’s Attitude to Risk and Mechanisms for Addressing Integrity and Ethical Issues
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited believes that ethics and integrity are the part of basic pillars for the culture, business success 
and the same is reflected in Code of Conduct of the Company. JSML has developed internal procedures to report any 
misconduct and have whistle blowing policy and conflict of interest policy in place to address integrity and ethical issues.

 25 JSML Annual Report 2024 | 



Risks and Opportunities



Strength

	� JSML takes pride of 
possessing state-of-
the-art machinery. The 
Company possesses 
production lines of 12,500 
TCD  capacity.

	� The Company is certified 
for quality. It also holds 
certification of Quality 
Management System ISO 
9001:2015, Food Safety 
Operations, FSSC 22000 
Version 5.1, Halal (PS 
3733).

	� The Company has 
experienced skilled 
work force that has been 
with the Company for 
years which ensures 
consistency and loyalty.

	� JSML has a strong 
corporate culture and 
management philosophy 
to always observe the 
accepted standard of fair-
conduct in dealing with 
employees, customers, 
suppliers and others 
stakeholders.

WEAKNESS

	� Relatively homogeneous 
product limiting pricing 
strategies.

	� Despite the efforts to 
educate the growers and 
to provide them the seeds, 
advances and loans 
for cane development 
Company still has to 
work on increasing 
the cane development 
and availability in the 
adjoining areas.

OPPORTUNITIES

	� Availability of bagasse as 
a byproduct to produce 
cheap power which 
makes new investments 
viable.

	� Growing food based 
business in the country 
and increasing sugar 
consumption.

	� Due to weaker Pak Rupee 
value and rise of inflation 
rate in current year there 
are good opportunities for 
export of sugar.

THREATS

	� Over regulation of sugar 
industry.

	� Inflation, devaluation of 
currency and rising fuel 
costs.

	� Rising cost of imported 
raw materials.

	� Fixation of sugarcane 
price by Government  is 
higher due to political 
influences.

O TS W



Opportunities
Opportunity Description Strategy to Materialize

Optimum Use of Capacity
Area of Impact:  Manufactured Capital
Impact Level: Medium to Long Term
Nature: Short to Medium
Source: External

Likelihood: «««««««

Sugarcane crushing is based 
on sugarcane crushed on daily 
basis and the sugar production 
is dependent on certain factors 
that includes sucrose recovery 
percentage, quality and availability 
of sugarcane.

Availability of ample irrigated area 
in the Khushab District to promote 
sugarcane crop, providing opportunity 
to the Company, the only sugar mills 
in the District, to propagate only those 
varieties having higher recovery 
potential. Company has a well-planned 
sugarcane procurement policy to 
maximize its crushing rate and utilize 
full crushing capacity.

Diversification
Area of Impact: Manufactured Capital 
& Financial Capital
Impact Level: Medium to Long Term
Nature: Short to Medium
Source: External
Likelihood: ««««««

Investing in new projects and 
increasing the productivity of 
existing ones are key elements for 
future organic growth.

We strengthened the basis for further 
growth in the coming years by making 
selective investment in power business. 
Aligned with corporate strategy, the 
Company has invested in power project 
to lower its reliance on single product.

Efficient and congenial work 
environment
Area of Impact: Human Capital
Impact Level: Medium to Long Term
Nature: Short to Medium
Source: External
Likelihood: ««««««

Provide congenial work 
environment where employee 
feels motivated for work.

The Company is focused to 
continuously improve skills of the 
management team through dedicated 
courses and trainings. Company has 
provided effective environment without 
excessive work pressure.

Risks and Opportunities Report
 The Board of directors of the Company is principally committed to identify and to mitigate all such business risks, well in time 
by utilizing optimum potential effort. Sugar Industry is carrying significant risk factors that may materially affect the Company’s 
operations, earnings, cash flows and overall performance. Hence the management strives to take all the measures necessary to 
mitigate and manage the risks while at the same time avail all the opportunities for growth as and when they occur. This principle 
keeps the Company within its risk appetite and helps to achieve its corporate objectives.

Approach against Risks & Opportunities
Risks:
As with sugar industry, the Company is susceptible to various risks. However, through comprehensive planning and an acute 
business understanding of the management, the Company continues to identify and mitigate risks. The Company maintains an 
established control framework which determines the Company’s level of risk tolerance, comprising clear structures, authority 
limits and accountabilities, well implemented policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes. Moreover, the Audit 
Committee is responsible for Internal Controls, review and planning in the Company and to mitigate such risks.

Opportunities:
The Board of Directors of the Company always focuses to capitalize management’s experience and to strategize operations of the 
Company in line with the Company’s stated vision. It also concentrates to utilize existing and potential opportunities confronted by 
the Company.

Following are the major opportunities and risks which may affect our business operations with mitigating strategies for controlling 
these risks and plans to materialize opportunities:

Risk Management Framework may cover the following:
	� The Board of Directors annually reviews the governance of risk and for determining the company’s level of risk tolerance by 

establishing risk management policies and for this purpose the Board has an overall review of business risks to ensure that the 
management maintains a sound system of risk identification, risk management and related systems and internal controls to 
safeguard assets, resources, reputations and interest of the company and shareholders.

	� The Board has constituted the risk management committee to carry out a review of effectiveness of risk management procedures 
and present a report to the Board. The TOR of the committee is approved by the Board.



Risk Description Mitigation Plan

Credit Risk
Area of Impact: Financial Capital
Impact Level: Moderate
Nature: Short 
Source: External

Likelihood:  «««««««

Any delay default in settlement 
of Company’s dues by its 
customers can negatively 
impact the Company’s liquidity 
situation.

The Company regularly make 
assessment of the Customers and 
extends credit accordingly. The 
Company has formal credit policy in 
place which bifurcate customers at 
different levels and credit is allowed 
on policy basis.

Working Capital Management
Area of Impact: Financial Capital
Impact Level: Moderate
Nature: Short to Medium
Source: External

Likelihood: ««««««

Any increase in raw material cost 
or increase in volume of raw 
material stock or debts may limit 
the avenues for availability of 
sufficient working capital.

Management has addressed the 
risk of shortage of working capital 
by availing the sufficient credit 
lines from the diversified financial 
institutions in order to meet the short-
term requirements of the Company.

Low Productivity/
Unavailability of Raw Material
Area of Impact: Financial Capital
Impact Level: Moderate
Nature: Short to Medium
Source: External

Likelihood: ««««««

Low Productivity/Recovery 
from sugar cane in the area and 
replacement of Sugarcane with 
other crops and orchards.

Company has Specialized data 
driven cane procurement team and 
give financial support and educates 
the growers with latest farming 
techniques in order to improve the 
yield which ultimately helps the 
sector growth as well as availability 
of raw material. The company in 
collaboration with other mills in the 
area is reducing variety CPF 238/ 
CPF 84 and is propagating varieties 
such as CPF 240, 246, 70-20-40, 77-
79 which have over 10.5 % recovery. 
These varieties are more resistant to 
crop diseases.

Natural Catastrophe
Area of Impact: Financial Capital 
& Human Capital
Impact Level: Low to Moderate
Nature: Short to Medium
Source: External

Likelihood: «««««««««

Destruction of manufactured 
facility, equipment and 
installations due to natural 
disaster

The Company has comprehensive 
Insurance cover in case of any 
catastrophe. Further, the Company 
has taken safety measures during 
construction and erection of 
building and plant. Company has 
a disaster recovery plan and safety 
policy in place.

Inability to Retain and Develop 
High Potential Talent
Area of Impact: Financial Capital 
& Human Capital
Impact Level: Low to Moderate
Nature: Short to Medium
Source: Internal/External

Likelihood: «««««««

High potential employees 
and workers play the most 
important role in company’s 
performance and are Corporate 
Assets. Frequent turnover 
affects Company’s operating 
performance.

Company has a robust human 
resource plan to promote a culture of 
employee training and development 
with opportunities of career growth 
aided by market competitive 
compensation.

Risks



P E S T E L

D
escrip

tio
n

POLITICAL

Political factors determine the 
extent to which a Government 
may influence the economy 
or a certain industry. Political 
uncertainty trembles the 
business environment.

Economic

Economic factors refer to the 
financial state of the country. 
A strong economy invigorates 
business and vice versa.

SOCIAL

Social responsibility of a 
company cannot be ignored. 
The Company must play its role 
in betterment of society in which 
it operates. Corporate Social 
Responsibility factors:

•	 Providing safe and clean work 
environment

• 	 Charity and donation
•	 Supporting the local 

community in healthcare and 
education

•	 Safe and healthy environment
•	 Demographic change

Technology

Technology plays a vital role 
in success of any company. 
There is a risk of technological 
change by competiators and 
technologically primitive 
companies often end-up being 
shut down.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Almost every manufacturing 
company has an impact on the 
environment. Climate changes, 
natural disaster and water 
shortage is the major area of 
concern.

LEGAL

Companies are required to abide 
by various laws and regulations. 
Every responsible company must 
follow all rules and regulations 
laid by the Government.
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ast Year

• Change in Ruling Party
• Political Uncertainty

• Increased Inflation
• Devaluation of PKR against USD
• Increase in Raw Material Cost
• Increase in Labor Cost
• Unstable Discount Rate
• Decelerated Economy

Make HSE department more 
rigorous.

•	 Up-gradation of network and 
security measures

•	 Falling film evaporator
•	 Boiling tube installation of 

high pressure boiler injection 
pumps installation for water.

•	 Implementation of proper HSE 
and environment standards 
within an organization

•	 Inclusion of Solar Power 
project within the company

•	 Building of reservoir to store.

•	 Companies Act, 2017
•	 Income Tax Ordinance
•	 Sales Tax Act
•	 SECP Acts, Rules and 

Regulations
•	 Code of Corporate Governance

O
rganizational Response

The Company continuously 
analyzes and monitors the 
political situation of the country 
including changes in duty 
structures, taxes and other levies 
to mitigate any unwarranted 
affect.

Sugarcane is a major raw 
material for sugar production as 
manufacturing cost. Sugarcane 
price is regulated by Provincial 
Government and higher cost 
of sugarcane makes the sugar 
mills less competitive to operate. 
The Company purchases good 
quality cane from growers to 
produce sugar at high recovery. 
However, devaluation of 
currency, inflation factor and 
increased variable costs impact 
the bottom line. The Company 
keeps on applying cost effective 
measures to manage inflationary 
pressure. Furthermore, it has 
negotiated competitive rates 
with various banks for its 
financing needs.

The Company always strives to 
be a part of social causes and 
for the betterment of society. 
For this purpose, the Company 
donates in various social causes 
including education programs 
and health & safety of society.

Moreover, the Company has a 
dedicated team which works for 
the betterment and welfare of 
workers at factory and ensures 
that the SOPs are properly 
adhered to this purpose.

The Company has to be 
equipped with latest technology 
to face the challenges of 
dynamic environment. Keeping 
in view the technological 
advancements, the Company 
keeps an eye to latest 
developments to improve 
efficiency and build capacity. 
The Company has latest 
machinery at its production 
site and keeps it updated to 
meet the latest technological 
standards.

The Company follows the 
standard for disposal of 
liquid effluents as per the 
Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) guidelines. 
The only hard form of waste 
extracted while purification 
of sugar called Mud which is 
environment friendly and is 
used as a fertilizer in farms. Every 
year trees are planted in mill and 
surrounding areas to improve 
shared environment.

The Company strongly abides 
by all the laws enacted by 
Government. The Company has 
employed various professionals 
of respective fields so that the 
Company would strongly and 
strictly follow all the laws that are 
applicable to the Company.
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mills less competitive to operate. 
The Company purchases good 
quality cane from growers to 
produce sugar at high recovery. 
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the bottom line. The Company 
keeps on applying cost effective 
measures to manage inflationary 
pressure. Furthermore, it has 
negotiated competitive rates 
with various banks for its 
financing needs.

The Company always strives to 
be a part of social causes and 
for the betterment of society. 
For this purpose, the Company 
donates in various social causes 
including education programs 
and health & safety of society.

Moreover, the Company has a 
dedicated team which works for 
the betterment and welfare of 
workers at factory and ensures 
that the SOPs are properly 
adhered to this purpose.

The Company has to be 
equipped with latest technology 
to face the challenges of 
dynamic environment. Keeping 
in view the technological 
advancements, the Company 
keeps an eye to latest 
developments to improve 
efficiency and build capacity. 
The Company has latest 
machinery at its production 
site and keeps it updated to 
meet the latest technological 
standards.

The Company follows the 
standard for disposal of 
liquid effluents as per the 
Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) guidelines. 
The only hard form of waste 
extracted while purification 
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year trees are planted in mill and 
surrounding areas to improve 
shared environment.
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Many factors may result in changes in Company’s share price. Following are some key factors that may affect the price 
of the share in the stock exchange:

Industry Performance
The share price of the Company will move in correlation with share prices of other companies in the industry with 
similar performance parameters. The economic and market conditions along with cost and revenue variables, that are 
regulated through Government influence, generally affect the industry performance. Prices of Sugarcane i.e. key raw 
material of sugar industry is controlled through support price mechanism by the Provincial Government coupled with 
regulated exports as allowed by the Federal Government from time to time. Increase in discount rate and inflationary 
pressure also affect the cost of production of sugar which results in share price variation. Any adverse news related to 
competitors will benefit the share price.

Selling Price
The profitability in the sugar industry is highly sensitive to the price of sugar, which eventually has a strong effect on 
the share price of the Company.

Raw Material Costs
Manufacturing cost mainly includes sugarcane cost which directly effects the cost of production of sugar. The cost of 
procurement of sugarcane is directly affected by the minimum support price for the relevant season and also through 
fair market competition in operational areas of procurement. The fluctuation in sugarcane procurement cost affects the 
profitability of the Company and resultantly affects the share price.

Government Policies and Regulations
The policies adopted and regulations promulgated by the Government have a direct association with share prices. 
Any policy that will result in increased demand, improved tax rates, reducing production costs, the better economic 
environment may positively influence the share price. Whereas the policies that create hindrances for the sugar industry 
and for the overall business environment will adversely impact the share price.

Law and Order
Improved law and order conditions and stable political environment foster the business conditions. Poor law and order 
conditions disrupt business activities and will have a negative effect on performance. Therefore, these have a direct 
effect on the share price sensitivity of the Company.

Economic Conditions
The Company’s performance has a direct relationship with economic conditions so as the share price. The factors 
that contribute to economic conditions include the discount rate, currency devaluation, and inflation. Increased in 
the discount rate will expose the Company to higher cost of debts. Currency devaluations will benefit the Company 
in terms of exports however, on the other hand, will result in a higher cost of imported stores and spares and plant 
and machinery. However, all these factors will improve the performance of the Company if contribute positively to the 
economic conditions.

Operational Efficiencies
Employment of cost reduction techniques, stable plant operations, better production planning, taking benefits of 
synergies of the production facility will have a significant and positive effect on the profitability of the Company and 
eventually on the share price as well.

Investor Sentiments
The share price of the Company is also open to the volatility of investor sentiments or confidence in the stock market 
and macro-economic conditions. In a strong stock market, the investors’ confidence is growing and so as the share 
prices. Whereas in weak stock market investors’ sentiments are negative so do the share prices. Stock market’s strength 
is closely associated with economic conditions.

Sensitivity Analysis of Change in Market Capitalization
Share Price of 30.09.2024 : Rs. 21.85
Market Capitalization as of 30.09.2024 : Rs. 745,706,698
Change in Share Price by : Change in Market Capitalization

+10% 	 Rs. 74,570,669.8
-10% 	 Rs. (74,570,669.8)

Share Price Sensitivity Analysis
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Calendar of Major Events - Year 2024

Board of Directors Meeting  

1st Quarter Results
Friday, January 26, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting  

2nd Quarter Results
Monday, May 27, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting  

3rd Quarter Results
Saturday, July 27, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting  

Annual Results
Tuesday, December 24, 2024

56th Annual 
General Meeting

Tuesday, January 28, 2025
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Corporate Calendar - Year 2025

Board of Directors Meeting  

1st Quarter Results
Friday, January 24, 2025

Board of Directors Meeting  

2nd Quarter Results
Monday, May 26, 2025

Board of Directors Meeting  

3rd Quarter Results
Monday, July 21, 2025

Board of Directors Meeting  

Annual Results
Wednesday, December 24, 2025

57th Annual 
General Meeting
Wednesday, January 28, 2026



Governance Framework

The Legislative and Regulatory Environment in which the 
Organization Operates

The JSML is registered in with SECP and listed at PSX. Therefore for the purpose of 
legislative and regulatory compliance JSML strictly follow:-

a) Companies Act, 2017
b) PSX Rule Book
c) CCG 2019
d) Sugar Factories Control Act 1950

Further, JSML is a member of the Pakistan Sugar Mills Association.

Justification for Independence of Independent Director:
Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg
Mr. Jawad Ur Rehman Khan
Ms. Faiza Iftikhar

As per requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and Code of Corporate Governance 2019, 
it is mandatory that each listed company shall have at least two or one third members of 
the Board, whichever is higher, as independent directors.

Independent director is a director; who is not connected or does not have any other 
relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the Company etc. and can be 
reasonably perceived as being able to exercise independent business judgement without 
being subservient to any form of conflict of interest. At JSML there is an appropriate mix 
of individuals as independent directors to ensure that there is an overall adequate level 
of knowledge and expertise for independent directors to effectively carry out their role 
and functions. All of the Independent directors meet the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2017.

Role and Responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer
Pursuant to the provisions of section 192(2) of the Companies Act 2017, the Board of 
Directors of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited has designated separate persons for the 
positions of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the office of the Chief Executive 
Officer with clear division of roles and responsibilities. Following is the brief comparison 
of roles of the Chairman & the Chief Executive Officer.

Chairman
The Chairman of the Board has the responsibility to lead the Board and ensure its 
effective functioning and continuous development. More specifically, the duties and 
responsibilities of the Chairman are as follows:

1. acting as a liaison between management and the Board, through the CEO;
2. ensuring that the Directors are properly informed with sufficient information to

enable the Directors to form best and informed decisions;
3. preparing the review report (to be included with the annual financial statements) 

on the overall performance and effectiveness of the Board of Directors;
4. developing and setting the agendas and acting as Chair at meetings of the

Board;
5. ensuring that all relevant information has been made available to the Board;
6. ensuring that the agenda, notice of meeting along with all relevant material

were circulated within stipulated time and the minutes of the Board meetings
are kept in accordance with applicable laws;
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7.	 safeguarding shareholders’ interest in the Company;
8.	 issuing the letter to the directors at the commencement of each three-year term of the Directors setting out 

their role, obligations, powers and responsibilities;
9.	 The chairman ensure that the Board of Directors remains effective in its tasks of setting and implementing the 

Company’s direction and strategy;
10.	 develop the agenda and presiding as chairman at every General Meeting of the Company;
11.	 recommending to the Board, after consultation with the Directors and management, the appointment of 

members of the Committees of the Board etc.

Chief Executive Officer
The CEO is primarily responsible for the management of the Company and its procedures in financial and other matters, 
subject to the oversight and directions of the Board, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017. In such capacity the 
CEO’s role and responsibilities include;

12.	 planning, formulating and implementing strategic policies;
13.	 ensuring the achievement of productivity and profitability targets and efficient Company operations;
14.	 ensuring that necessary coordination exists between various departments of the Company to achieve smooth 

operations;
15.	 ensuring that the Company’s interests and assets are properly protected and maintained and all the required 

Government obligations are complied with in a timely manner;
16.	 maintaining a close liaison with the Government, customers, suppliers and sales offices;
17.	 ensuring proper functioning of the Management Committees of the Company of which he is the chairman;
18.	 preparing and presenting personally to the Board of Directors reports such as annual business plan, cash 

flow projections and long term plans, budgets along with variance analysis etc.

The CEO of the Company is to whom all Business and Functional heads directly or indirectly report and is responsible 
for presentation of the Company’s aims and policies to the Government and all stakeholders.

How the Board Operates and the Matters Delegated to the Management 
At the time of appointment of director, the Chairman of the Board communicates a complete set of document of roles, 
responsibilities and powers as director of the Company. These roles, responsibilities and powers are in accordance 
with the provisions of applicable and relevant laws. 

At JSML the responsibility of management to conduct the routine business operations of the Company in an effective 
and ethical manner in accordance with the strategies and goals as approved by the Board and to identify and administer 
the key risks and opportunities which could impact the Company in the ordinary course of execution of its business. 
Management is also responsible in keeping the Board members updated regarding any changes in the operating 
environment. It is also the responsibility of management, with the supervision of the Board and its Audit Committee, 
to prepare financial statements that fairly present the financial position of the Company in accordance with applicable 
accounting standards and legal requirements.

Diversity in the Board
The Board of Directors form one of the pillars of a corporate governance framework and over the years, Regulators have 
placed great emphasis on addressing different matters relating to Diversity on the Board.

Diversified board members are more likely to possess different personal characteristics, which lead to dissimilar 
leadership, thinking, professional styles and even risk preferences and behaviors. This also provide a more 
comprehensive oversight to the operations of the Company through a further enhancement of the Company’s sensitivity 
to a wider range of possible risks such as reputation and compliance risks. Diverse board of directors must include a 
variety of perspectives, skills, ages, genders, cultures, and ethnicities to achieve success. At JSML, we have female 
representation on the Board along with members who are ‘financial literate’ and experienced in different industries / 
sectors.

Presence of the Audit Committee Members and Chairman at the AGM
Shareholders are invited to all General Meetings and are encouraged to share their concerns and queries. The chairman, 
certain members of the Board, Chief Executive and other senior management personnel were present at the General 
Meetings held during the year, to address all concerns and queries raised by the shareholders regarding the financial 
statements for the year ended 30 September 2024 and Audit Committee’s activities and matters within the scope of 
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the Committee’s responsibilities.

Selection of Chairman and Non-Executive Director
No external search consultancy was used for the selection and appointment of the Chairman or any other non-executive 
directors on JSML’s Board.

Chairman’s Significant Commitments and any Changes Thereto
Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg is serving Jauharabad Sugar Mill Limited as the Chairman of the Board. Apart from his 
associations as mentioned in Directors’ profile, he does not have any significant commitment.

ERP to Meet Modern Business Essentials
JSML always made sure to match the pace of technological advancement. The Company has an integrated information 
management system and a stable ERP platform which is able to manage and integrate the functions of core business 
processes/modules like finance, HR, supply chain and inventory management in a single system. System Analysis and 
Resource Planning (SARP) software especially designed for sugar sector industry has been implemented within the 
Company.  As far as cost efficiency is considered, it brings together all the analytical and transactional capabilities of a 
variety of systems onto one location. This enhances the decision making process immensely.

Management of JSML is always concerned about the improved technology and the ERP system of the company is 
upgraded and reconfigured from time to time as per the changing needs of the company and regular trainings for the 
staff are conducted internally and outsourced where needed.

The Company had always engaged renowned consultant for its ERP project as per need to manage the control risks 
and proper guidance to relevant staff where needed. Moreover, there is a robust policy in place for the security of 
control system; which define the limits of authority, powers and segregations within system to safeguard the sensitive 
data. 

The company is well aware and wants to stay ahead of the curve and make decisions that are future ready as the 
technology is evolving rapidly therefore keeps the system updated.

External Oversight on Our Function:
To enhance credibility of internal controls and systems, we have audited and Certified for continued satisfactory 
operation of the Organization’s Management System ISO 9001:2015 and Certificate of continued satisfactory Food 
Safety operations - FSSC 22000 Version 5.1 by a reputable professional service organization Bureau Veritas and special 
external specialist are also appointed by the Company who are experts in providing services to enhance credibility of 
internal control systems.

Governance Practices Exceeding Legal Requirements

19.	 Implementation of Directors’ Training Program ahead of prescribed timeframe;
20.	 Implementation of aggressive Health, Safety and Environment Strategies to ensure safety of employees, 

equipment and surrounding communities;
21.	 Implementation of various Environmental friendly projects for welfare of the community as part of its 

Corporate Social Responsibility;
22.	 Ensured that all material information is communicated to the PSX, the SECP and the Company’s shareholders 

as soon as it becomes available mostly before the deadlines set out by the laws;
23.	 Disclosure of various financial analysis including ratios, reviews, risk matrices and graphs etc. in the Annual 

Report;
24.	 Disclosure of forward looking information, governance practices, history of financial information and its 

graphic presentation.
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Report of the Audit Committee
Chairman: Mr. Jawad Ur  Rehman Khan
Member: Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg
Member: Mr. Amjad Javed Aftab

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of one Non-Executive Directors and two Independent Non-Executive Director 
including the Chairman of the Committee. The Head of Internal Audit attends Audit Committee meetings. The Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer attend Audit Committee meetings by invitation. The Audit Committee also separately meets the external 
auditors at least once in a year without the presence of the Management. 

The Chairman to the comittee has attended all the meetings and replied all queries to the members. 

Meetings of the Audit Committee are held at least once every quarter. Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the 
year 2023-2024. Based on reviews and discussions in these meetings, the Audit Committee reports that:

1.	 The Company has issued a Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance which has also been reviewed and

certified by the auditors of the Company.

2.	 The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements of the Company and

recommended them for approval of the Board of Directors. Further, the financial statements comply with the requirements of the

Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017, and applicable International Accounting Standards and International Financial

Reporting Standards notified by SECP.

3.	 The Audit Committee has reviewed and approved all related party transactions.

4.	 The Audit Committee takes into account any feedback from the Board of Directors and incorporates for improvement.

5.	 There were no whistle-blowing incidence reported to the Audit Committee current year.

Internal Audit and Risk Management
6.	 For appraisal of internal controls and monitoring compliance, the Company has in place an appropriately staffed, Internal Audit

department. The Audit Committee reviewed the resources and performance of the Internal Audit department to ensure that they

were adequate for the planned scope of the Internal Audit function. Head of Internal Audit Department has direct access to the

Audit Committee.

7.	 An Internal Audit Risk Assessment document is submitted to the Audit Committee and based on that an Audit Plan is prepared

to mitigate the risks involved in the Company’s operations. Further, on the basis of this plan, audits are conducted and reports

are submitted. The Committee on the basis of the said reports reviews the adequacy of controls and compliance shortcomings in

areas audited and discuss corrective actions in the light of management responses. Regular follow ups of these reports are also

taken. This ensures the continual evaluation of controls and improved compliance. Minutes of Audit Committee meetings are timely 

circulated to the Board of Directors.

8.	 For continuous improvement of internal controls, the Committee also discussed the internal controls and the management letter

with the external auditors.

External Audit
1.	 The external auditors M/s. UHY Hassan Naeem & Co. Chartered Accountants were allowed direct access to the Audit Committee

and necessary coordination with internal auditors was ensured. Major findings arising from audits and any matters that the external 
auditors wished to highlight were freely discussed with them.

2.	 The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the external auditors and management, all the Key Audit Matters and other
issues identified during the external audit along with the methods used to address the same.

3.	 Being eligible for reappointment as Auditors of the Company, the Audit Committee has recommended the appointment of M/s. UHY
Hassan Naeem & Co. Chartered Accountants as External Auditors of the Company for the year ending September 30, 2024 as it is 
one of the reputable audit firm and has thorough knowledge of the Company’s business and industry due to long association with
the Company.

4.	 The Company also obtains taxation related services from M/s. UHY Hassan Naeem & Co. Chartered Accountants as it is one of the 
reputed firm in provision of said services and has sound professional policies and procedure to ensure compliance of independence.

Chairman
Mr. Jawad Ur  Rehman Khan

Dated: December 24, 2024



Notice of 56th Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the Fifty Sixth (56th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Jauharabad Sugar 
Mills Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Tuesday, January 28, 2025 at 11:00 a.m., at its Register Office 125-B, 
Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended
September 30, 2024 together with Auditors’ Reports and Directors’ and Chairman’s Review Report thereon.

2. To appoint Auditors for the next financial year ending September 30, 2025 and to fix their remunerations. M/S
UHY Hassan Naeem & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

3. To transact any other business with the permission of the chair.

By order of the Board

Al Yousuf 
  Company Secretary

January 06, 2025
Lahore
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1.	 The Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended September 30, 2024 along 
with Auditors’ and Directors’ Report and Chairman’s 
Review Report thereon have been placed on the 
Company’s website: www.jsml.com.pk, which can be 
downloaded/ viewed from the following QR code and 
weblink:

Weblink QR Code

https://www.jsml.com.pk/index.php/

financial-reports/

3.	 The share transfer books of the Company will remain 
closed from January 21, 2025 to January 28, 2025 
(both days inclusive). Transfer received in order by 
the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s Corplink (Private) 
Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, 
Lahore up to the close of business on January 20, 2025 
will be treated in time for entitlement to attend the 
Meeting.

4.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 
may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend 
and vote on his/her behalf. In case of corporate entity, 
the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney 
with specimen signature of the representative shall 
be submitted along with Proxy Form of the Company. 
Proxies, to be affective, must be received at the 
registered office of the Company 48 hours before the 
time of holding of the meeting.

5.	 Those members who have deposited their shares with 
the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
(CDC) are requested to bring their original CNIC, 
Account and Participation’s Numbers. Such members 
will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in 
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s 
Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000.

6.	 The members should quote their folio number in all 
correspondence with the Company and at the time of 
attending the Annual General Meeting.

7.	 Members are requested to notify the change of their 
registered addresses, Zakat Declaration, and tax 
exemption status, if any, duly accompanied with its valid 
certificates, immediately to Company’s Share Registrar.

8.	 The Corporate members having CDC account are 
required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) 
updated with their respective participants, whereas 
corporate physical members should send a copy of their 
NTN certificate to the Company’s Share Registrar.

9.	 Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017 requires that 
any Shares/Dividend that remain unclaimed for a 
period of three years (or more) are to vest with Federal 
Government. The law requires the Company to deposit 
any unclaimed or unpaid amount to the credit of the 
Federal Government, if no claim is made before the 
Company after giving due notices to the shareholders. 
Through this notice all shareholders who by any reason 
could not claim their dividend or shares are advised to 
immediately collect / enquire about their unclaimed 
dividend or pending shares/modaraba certificate, if any, 
with Company’s Share Registrar.

Name CNIC
Folio 

Number

Contact 

No.
Email

10.	 Corporate Analyst Briefing Session as mandated by the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange according to its notification 
PSX/N-92 dated January 28, 2019 of Jauharabad Sugar 
Mills Limited will also be held at its register office 125-B, 
Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate, Kot Lakh Pat, Lahore on 
Tuesday, January 28, 2025 shortly after the completion 
of AGM. At the session performance and results for the 
year ended September 30, 2024 will be explained. The 
shareholders/investors and analyst, who are interested 
to attend the session through video link are requested 
to send their registration at secretary@jsml.com.pk 
maximum by 26, January, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. by providing 
the particulars as follows:

11.	 Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through 
email. 

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
vide SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 08, 2014 has 
allowed companies to circulate annual balance sheet, 
profit & loss account, auditor’s and Directors’ reports 
and Chairman’s Review Report along with notice of 
annual general meeting to its members through email. 
Members who have provided their email addresses are 
being sent the same by email. Members who have not 
provided their email addresses and wish to avail this 
facility may send their consent along with email address 
to the Company. Hard copies of the annual audited 
accounts will be provided on demand.

12.	 In accordance with section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 
2017, if the Company receives consent from members 
holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing 
at a geographical location, to participate in the meeting 
through video conference at least 7 days prior to date 
of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference 
facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in 
that city. The Company will intimate to such shareholder’s 
information regarding venue of video conference facility 
at least 5 days before the date of the Annual General 
Meeting to enable them to access to such facility.

13.	 Deposit of Physical Share into CDC Account:

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company 
is required to replace its physical shares into book-entry form. 
To ensure full compliance with the provisions of Section 72 of 
the Companies Act, 2017 and to be benefitted of the facility 
of holding shares in the Book-Entry-Form, all such members/ 
shareholders who still hold shares in physical form, requiring 
them to convert their shares in the Book-Entry-Form.
The Company has placed the notice of AGM along with form 
of proxy in English and Urdu languages on its website: www.
jsml.com.pk.

Note:



Chairman’s Review
On Board’s Overall Performance u/s 192
of the Companies Act, 2017

I am honored to present the Chairman’s Review for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, on behalf of the Board 
of Directors. This report offers a comprehensive analysis of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited’s (JSML) performance, 
strategic initiatives, and the steps taken to navigate the challenges posed by Pakistan’s current economic conditions. 
The year under review was marked by a complex and volatile economic environment in Pakistan. The country faced 
persistent challenges, including high inflation, fl uctuating foreign ex change rates, rising energy costs, uncertain 
government policies, and supply chain disruptions. These macroeconomic headwinds tested the resilience of 
businesses across various sectors. However, JSML remained steadfast in its commitment of delivering value to its 
stakeholders, navigating these testing times with adaptability and prudent resource management.

The Board of Directors, in alignment with JSML’s vision and mission, remained focused on achieving sustainable 
growth and enhancing shareholder wealth. Our strategic direction emphasized diversification, operational efficiency 
and innovation, enabling us to maintain our competitive edge in the sugar industry. In the area of operational efficiency, 
we have invested in latest technologies and process improvements to optimize our production processes, reduce 
energy consumption, and improve yield. These measures have contributed to our improved financial performance and 
enhanced our environmental sustainability.

JSML achieved commendable financial performance during the year, recording a notable 13.29% increase in revenue 
compared to the previous year. This accomplishment is particularly significant given the challenging circumstances 
faced by the sector, which grappled with maintaining stability amid fluctuating market conditions and economic 
uncertainties. This success reflects our ability to adapt to market dynamics, maintain vigilance in responding to 
opportunities, and sustain profitability through optimized production processes, consistent sugar recovery rates, 
and well-executed strategic marketing initiatives. Beyond financial achievements, our efforts have also generated 
meaningful economic value for the communities in which we operate. This includes creating job opportunities, 
contributing to tax revenues, and supporting a range of social welfare programs aimed at uplifting local communities.
The Board takes immense pride in upholding a robust governance framework that ensures transparency, accountability, 
and compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. JSML has consistently adhered to the principles of the 
Company Act, 2017 and Code of Corporate Governance (CCG), demonstrating our unwavering commitment to ethical 
practices and sound corporate management.

Effective risk management has remained a fundamental pillar of our governance strategy. The Board has consistently 
reviewed and refined our risk management framework to address emerging challenges and ensure the continuity of our 
business operations. These guiding principles have shaped our strategic priorities and business operations, enabling 
us to navigate the challenges and seize new opportunities. Enhancing internal controls has been a key focus, aimed 
at protecting assets, preventing fraud, and maintaining the accuracy of our financial reporting. To further reinforce our 
governance practices, the Board has established independent committees, including the Audit Committee, Human 
Resource & Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee, ensuring a robust 
and transparent governance structure that aligns with the highest standards of corporate accountability.

In accordance with Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017, the Board conducted its annual self-assessment. The 
evaluation affirmed that the Board effectively discharged its responsibilities, contributed to strategic decision-making, 
and maintained high standards of governance. This process provided valuable insights, reinforcing our commitment 
to continuous improvement and enhancing the Board’s effectiveness.

We are proud of the diverse composition of our Board, which brings a rich blend of expertise, perspectives, and 
experiences. This diversity has been instrumental in driving effective decision-making, fostering innovation, and 
ensuring a balanced consideration of stakeholder interests.

JSML is firmly committed to identifying new opportunities for growth and innovation to strengthen our position in 
the market. In addition to our financial successes, we remain focused on generating tangible economic value for the 
communities in which we operate. Our efforts will center on creating job opportunities, contributing to tax revenues, 
and supporting a variety of social welfare programs designed to enhance the overall well-being of society.

Lastly, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all our stakeholders, including employees, shareholders, customers, 
suppliers, and regulatory authorities, whose invaluable contributions and steadfast support have been essential to our 
success. Their trust and confidence in JSML have been key drivers behind our accomplishments.



Muhammad Aamir Beg
Chairman 

Lahore
Dated: 24 December, 2024
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Mr. Syed Anwar Hussain Shahid
Chief Executive
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Directors’ Review Report
IIn the name of Allah, The Most Gracious, the Most Merciful. The Directors of the 
Company are pleased to submit the Annual Report, inclusive of the audited financial 
statements, for the financial year ending September 30, 2024.

Global Economy

The global economy continues to grapple with enduring challenges arising from 
intensified geopolitical tensions, increasing geoeconomic fragmentation, and the 
prolonged impact of monetary policies designed to control inflation. High levels 
of sovereign debt have led to the withdrawal of fiscal support in many countries, 
exacerbating economic vulnerabilities. Additionally, extreme weather events linked to 
climate change are disrupting food production and energy supplies, driving up prices 
and creating inflationary pressures. These global issues are mirrored by domestic 
challenges such as soaring production costs, inconsistent energy availability, and 
unpredictable weather patterns compromising crop yields and sectoral sustainability. 
Strategic interventions are crucial to mitigate risks and promote long-term growth in the 
industry.

Domestic Economy

Pakistan’s economy continues to face significant challenges, including persistent fiscal 
deficits, high public debt, elevated inflation, and external account imbalances. The 
exchange rate has depreciated to historic lows, exacerbating inflationary pressures 
and deterring foreign direct investment. The monetary policy rate remains elevated, 
constraining credit availability and contributing to a widespread working capital 
shortage. Economic growth has been apathetic, with downside risks remaining 
exceptionally high. In September 2024, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) approved 
a 37-month Extended Fund Facility (EFF) for Pakistan, amounting to approximately 
US$7 billion. This arrangement aims to support economic stabilization and implement 
structural reforms. These substantial debt obligations strain foreign exchange reserves 
and necessitate stringent import controls, hindering economic recovery. Food inflation, 
driven by climatic shocks and rising global agrarian product prices, remains a major 
contributor to the higher Consumer Price Index (CPI). Ensuring stable and affordable 
food and energy supplies is critical to fostering economic stability and growth in this 
challenging environment.

Sugar Industry

Sugar prices remained depressed throughout the year, and the allocation of a restricted 
export quota further undermined the industry’s profitability. In addition, delays in 
government export decisions exacerbated market instability, leading to significant 
losses across the sector. Ethanol prices remain weak on the international market, 
which is expected to reduce the potential revenue contribution from this by-product 
in 2024-25. For the upcoming season, the Government has not issued a notification 
for the minimum support price for sugarcane and instead a fair market value based on 
the prevailing market price is being permitted that could facilitate balanced rewards for 
both farmers and the industry. 

This year, as per Economic Survey of Pakistan 2023/24, agriculture sector contributed 
24 percent towards the national GDP growth rate. Sugar industry being the second 
largest argic-based industry posted 1.55 percent growth towards agriculture sector’s 
contribution in the overall GDP growth of the country. Sugar production accounts for 
3.5 percent of agriculture’s value addition, 0.8 percent of GDP and alone remained the 
major source of employment in agricultural labor.

In this crop year, sugarcane was cultivated on approximately 1,250 thousand hectares 
of land [CY2022/23: 1,319 thousand hectares], showing a decrease of 5.23 percent, 
resulting in an estimated production of 83,500 million metric tons decrease by 
approximate eight percent YOY basis. Crushing season 2023-24 turned-out to be a 
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challenging one as, for the last two consecutive years, the Government of Punjab had sharply increased the minimum 
support price [MSP] of sugarcane by thirty-three [33] percent to Rs. 400 per maund [CY2022/23: Rs. 300 per maund], 
The sector’s  per maund cost of sugarcane for season 2023-24 was still significantly above the MSP which was not 
reflected in the year’s selling prices resulting in losses for the sector

Sugar production for this year remained close to 6.85 million tons, roughly equating last year’s production of 6.73 
million tons. The Government of Pakistan this year has already sanctioned 7.90 million tons of sugar for exports. 
Furthermore, the [PSMA] has recommended the Government of Pakistan for export of approximately 0.4 million metric 
tons of sugar during the 2024-25 crushing season. This decision is expected to contribute significantly to the country’s 
foreign exchange earnings, as domestic production is projected to surpass the average consumption levels of sugar in 
Pakistan in recent years. The Company is closely monitoring the whole situation and is hopeful to successfully manage 
through the present scenario.

Operational Review

Principle activities of the Company during FY2023/24 remained unchanged i.e., manufacturing and sales of sugar and 
its allied products. The Company had started crushing season on 25th November 2023 [FY2022/23: 25th November, 
2022] in compliance with the directives issued by the Government of Punjab. The comparative summarized operating 
result of your mills for the FY2023/24 are as follows:

Description Units FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 YOY Change

Working Days Days 103 103 (0.00%)

Sugarcane Crushed M. Tons 657,997 651,476 1.00%

Sugar Produced M. Tons 64,874 64,198 1.05%

Sugar Recovery Percentage 9.86% 9.86% 0.00%

Sugar Sold – Domestic M. Tons 57,712 67,210 (14.13%)

Sugar Sold – International M. Tons 1,424 2,487 (42.74%)

Sugar Sold – Total M. Tons 59,136 69,697 (15.15%)

Sugar Closing Stock M. Tons 24,020 18,282 31.39%

Molasses Produced M. Tons 26,450 29,630 (10.73%)

Molasses Recovery Percentage 4.02% 4.55% (11.65%)

During the current fiscal year, the Company’s operated for 103 days, equal days as previous year. Despite the challenges, 
the Company achieved an average daily crushing of 6,388 metric tons of sugarcane, reflecting a 1 percent increase 
compared to the previous fiscal year [CY2022/23: 6,325 metric tons]. The enhanced daily crushing can be attributed to 
efficient milling practices, prompt payment to sugarcane farmers, and the longstanding trust cultivated with growers 
over the past decade.
The production of white refined sugar stood at 64,874 metric tons, 1.05% increase from the previous year [CY2022/23: 
64,198 metric tons]. Additionally, the Company produced 26,450 metric tons of molasses, showing a decline in the 
recovery rate of 11.65 percent compared to the previous year [CY2022/23: 29,630 metric tons].

During the reported financial year, the Company has undergone a significant transformation by embracing automation 
in its plant operations. This strategic shift towards automation involved substantial capital investment, amounting to 
Rs. 702 million. Among the various capitalization initiatives, several upgrades have been implemented to enhance 
operational efficiency and technological capabilities. Few major additions include refurbishment of mills, addition 
in solar energy conservation project, RO Plant for water treatment and economizer to improve efficiency of bagasse 
based power plant.

Financial Performance
The Comparison of the key financial results of your organization for the year ended as of 30 September 2024 is as 
follows:

Description FY2023/24 FY2022/23 YOY Change

Rs in “000” Rs in “000” Percentage

Sales – Net 7,996,452 6,925,893 15.46%

Cost of Sales 6,987,145 5,851,908 19.40%
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Gross Profit 1,009,306 1,073,985 (6.02%)

Selling and Distribution Expenses 24,166 29,748 (18.77%)

Administrative and General Expenses 237,693 211,487 12.39%

Operating Profit 747,447 832,749 (10.24%)

Other Operating income 168,240 (6,375)   2739.06%

Financial Cost 949,094 560,136 69.44%

Profit Before Tax (33,406) 266,238 (112.55%)

Taxation 35,286 (54,005)   165.34%

Profit After Tax 1,880 212,233 (99.11%)

Earnings Per Share (Rs. /Share) 0.06 6.22 (99.04%)

During the year, the Company achieved a topline of Rs. 7,996 million, [FY2022/23: Rs. 6,926 million], reflecting a 
year-over-year (YOY) increase of 15.46%. The Topline growth of Rs. 1,071 million was driven by liquidation of 62.97% 
[FY2022/23: 71.52%] of total sugar stocks. The cost of sales rose to Rs. 6,987 million, up from Rs. 5,852 million in the 
previous year, marking a YOY increase of 19.40%, primarily due to higher sugarcane prices. Consequently, the gross 
profit declined by 6.05% to Rs. 1,009 million, compared to Rs. 1,074 million in [FY2022/23].The Company has recorded 
bottom line of Rs. 1.8 million [FY2022/23: Rs. 212 million] during this year. Earnings per share for the current financial 
year remained Rs. 0.06 against Rs. 6.22 in last financial year. Further, during the reporting period 2023-24, the domestic 
sugar market experienced significant price volatility, with prices declining steadily from the season through the post-
season. This downward trend affected the Company’s revenue streams.

Future Prospects
Going forward, the industry has entered the crushing year 2024/25 with carryforward stocks, lack of working capital, 

higher cost of funds, lower yield and sucrose recovery. As per the Ministry of National Food Security and Research 
on Pakistan’s sugar, the forecast is of 6.8 million tons of sugar production for CY2024/25 along with negligible carry 
forward sugar stocks from CY2023/24. The current production will be sufficient to meet the historic annualized domestic 
demand of the country. Strategic reserves and pilferage/ market distortion factors are not considered which may create 
surplus of sugar that may needs to be exported.

The Company aligned with its vision to improve mills efficiency is continuously investing in BMR and maintenance 
of the plant. Going forward the Company has planned to focus on corporate and retail segment under its marketing 
strategy. To bring diversification in revenue stream, the Company is focusing to enhance share of by-products to topline 
and is exploring avenues to export surplus power in absence of EPA with FESCO.

Credit Rating 
Credit rating is an assessment of the credit standing of entities in Pakistan. PACRA has its primary function to evaluate 
the capacity and ability of an entity to honour its debt obligations. During the year, Pakistan Credit Rating Agency 
(PACRA) maintained entity ratings of the Company as “BBB+” with respect to long-term bank facilities and “A2” with 
respect to short-term bank facilities. These ratings denote a low expectation of credit risk and indicate satisfactory 
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capacity for timely repayment of financial commitments. The Company is current with all its short-term obligations. 
Currently the Company has no long-term obligation as of reporting date.

Growth
The Company has consistently pursued excellence, prioritizing maximum returns for its stakeholders. Over the past 
decade, a significant turnaround has occurred, reshaping the approach to rewarding stakeholders.

In the current financial year, substantial investments have been made in upgrading machinery. Anticipating positive 
outcomes, particularly during the 2024/25 crushing season are expected to deliver improved results for all stakeholders.

Dividend 
For the financial year 2023/24, the Board has not recommend a dividend, as the Company was not able to generate 
sufficient profit during the year. This decision aligns with the Companies act 2017 and the board’s commitment to 
maintaining financial stability and supporting long-term growth in challenging market conditions.

Holding Company
Cane Processing Company (Pvt) Limited, a company registered in accordance with Pakistan’s laws and headquartered 
in Lahore, functions as the holding entity for Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited, holding a majority ownership of 63.66 
percent of shares.

Statutory Auditors and their Audit Report
UHY Hassan Naeem & Company, Chartered Accountants an “A” category firm included in the State Bank of Pakistan’s 
panel of auditors, serve as the Statutory Auditors of the Company. They will continue in this role until the conclusion of 
the 56th Annual General Meeting scheduled for 28th January 2025. The Auditors’ report on the Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024, forms part of this Annual Report. The report does not include 
any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or disclaimers.

Being eligible for reappointment, they have expressed their willingness to continue as Auditors for the next financial 
year. Following a thorough review, the Audit Committee has recommended their reappointment, which has been 
endorsed by the Board of Directors for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Quantitative Shariah Screening Criteria Analysis:
The Company, considering the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) requirements in term of 
Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023 (the Regulations), engaged external Shariah advisory firm i.e. Saud & Sons 
Accountancy and Advisory (Private) Limited for the assessment of Shariah compliance by the Company. The results of 
analysis of shariah quantitative screening are as following;

Description Minimum Acceptable Bench 
Mark

FY 2023 FY 2024

Interest Bearing Debt to Total Asset Ratio <37% 6.64% 18.84%

Non Shariah Compliant Investment to Total Asset 
Ratio

<33% 0.12% 0.10%

Non Shariah Compliant Income to Total Revenue 
Ratio

<5% 0.02% 0.09%

Illiquid Asset to Total Asset Ratio =>25% 95.13% 93.24%

Market Price Per Share => Net Liquid Asset Per Share 16.25 21.84

Thereto the Company has shown satisfactory behavior in terms of shariah screening criteria for the year 2024 as all the 
required bench marks are within maximum acceptable quantitative tolerance level.

Going forward the Company is advised to proceed for shariah compliant certificate from SECP as per their notice 
circulated vis SECP/IFD/SCC/2023/351 and in accordance with the Regulations.

Human Resources 
The Company continued to create a productive, learning environment by implementing robust and comprehensive 
HR processes, fair transparent performance evaluation and taking new initiatives to further align its Human Resource 
policies to meet the growing needs of its business.
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Change in the Nature of Business 
During the year, there was no material change in the nature of the business of the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investment 
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 are given in 
the notes to Financial Statements forming part of this annual report.

Internal Financial Control 
The Company’s Internal Control system with reference to the financial statements are adequate and commensurate 
with the nature of its business and the size and complexity of its operations. Periodic Audits and checks are conducted 
along with the controls to prevent, detect and correct irregularities in the operations have been laid down by the 
Company.

Management Discussion and Analysis 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on the operations of the Company, as required under SECP (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) is provided in a separate section and forms an integral part of this report.

Governance of Risk and Internal Control 
The Company has a Risk Management Committee to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business 
objectives. Major risks identified are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. These 
are discussed at the meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company.

Going Concern
These financial statements are prepared on going concern basis and there is no concern on Company’s ability to 
continue as Going Concern.

Significant Plans and Decisions
In the near future, there are no plans for any restructuring or discontinuance of operations except for the routine update 
of production capacities at the manufacturing site of the Company. 

Qualification of CFO and Head of Internal Audit
The Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Internal Audit possess the requisite qualifications and experience as 
prescribed in the code of Corporate Governance.

Insider Tradings
The Board has formulated a policy strictly prohibiting insider trading, in compliance with the relevant listing regulations 
in Pakistan. Throughout the financial year, none of the directors, CEO, CFO, Head of internal audit, and Company 
Secretary engaged in any trading of the Company’s shares.

Risk Analysis and Mitigation Techniques
As an agricultural industry, sugar mills face additional risks affecting the performance of production processes derived 
from raw materials due to their seasonal, perishable, bulky, and diverse quality. Therefore, risk management becomes 
very important. The purpose of this study was to identify, analyze, and define risk mitigation strategies.

Availability of Sugarcane 
The sugar industry faces significant challenges, including the availability of sugarcane, regulatory risks, sugar pricing, 
and competition among neighboring mills. Sugarcane is the primary raw material, and any disruptions in its timely 
procurement can adversely affect operations. Factors influencing cane availability include climatic conditions, labor 
shortages for harvesting, and farmers opting for alternative crops.

Despite this growth, challenges persist. The cost of production for the 2023-24 crop year increased by 12% driven by 
higher land rents, seed prices, labor costs and rising rates of fertilizers and pesticides. To ensure a consistent supply 
of quality sugarcane, the Company prioritizes strong relationships with cane growers. Support initiatives include 
assistance with mechanical and manual harvesting, and the introduction of improved cane varieties. Financial support 
and timely payments for supplies are also provided. Furthermore, the Company offers transportation services to 
facilitate the delivery of cane to the mill yard.

These collaborative efforts aim to secure a reliable supply of sugarcane, thereby mitigating risks associated with its 
availability and contributing to the Company’s operational stability.
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Revenue Concentration 
Focusing extensively on a singular business segment exposes the company to inherent risks within that specific sector. 
In order to mitigate these risks, the company adopts a strategic approach by pursuing diversified activities within 
the current scope of overall management. This decision is based on a comprehensive assessment of the pros and 
cons associated with each activity. Such a strategy is consistent with the Company’s policy, which seeks to enhance 
business volumes while keeping exposure to undue risks at a minimum.

Inflation and Cost Structure 
The cost of revenues primarily comprises raw materials such as sugarcane, chemicals, stores, repairs and maintenance, 
and finance costs. Recognizing the inherent inflationary pressures associated with these inputs, the Company has 
implemented specific procurement policies for sugarcane and allied materials essential for manufacturing to mitigate 
risks effectively.

At Jauharabad Sugar Mills, cost optimization and reduction initiatives are a strategic priority at the organizational level. 
These initiatives are rigorously monitored through a budgetary control mechanism, with regular reviews comparing 
budgeted figures against actual performance. This approach ensures alignment with the Company’s financial model. 
A strong emphasis on cost management has been instilled across the organization, fostering a culture that prioritizes 
cost reduction and control as key drivers of operational efficiency and financial sustainability.

Government Policies and Impacts
Provincial government regulates the sugarcane policies and it has a larger control on this industry by determining the 
raw material price and also influence the sugar mills operational commencement through various statutes. The Federal 
government regulates the export of sugar. Hence, a sugar company’s credit risk profile is vulnerable to government 
policies. These policies influence cost of production of sugar through regulated sugarcane pricing and revenue through 
its regulated export / import permissions. However, the management diligently comply with relevant regulations for 
smooth operations and business growth.

Legal Risk
Legal risk is the risk in which the Company is exposed to legal action As the Company is governed by various laws and 
the Company has to do its business within four walls of law, where the Company is exposed to legal risk exposure.

The Company has an experienced team of professionals, advisors who focus on evaluating the risks involved in a 
contract, ascertaining our responsibilities under the applicable law of the contract, restricting our liabilities under the 
contract, and covering the risks involved so that they can ensure adherence to all contractual commitments.

Board of Directors and its Committees 
The Board of Directors of the Company as of September 30, 2024, consists of: 

Total Number of Directors:

Male               05
Female               01

Board Composition
The composition of board of the director is as follow; 

Executive Directors               02
Independent Directors               02
Non-Executive Directors               02
Female Directors               01

The names of the directors as at September 30, 2024 are as follows;

Sr. No. Director Category Meetings Attended
1 Mr. Syed Anwar Hussain Shahid Chief Executive                4/4  
2 Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg Chairman 4/4  
3 Mr. Farhan Ilyas Independent                4/4   
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4 Mr. Ghias-ul-Hassan CPL Nominee/Non-Executive                4/4   
5 Mr. Saif-ur-Rehman CPL Nominee/Executive                4/4  
6 Mr. Amjad Javed Aftab CPL Nominee/Non-Executive                3/4 
7 Ms. Faiza Iftikhar Independent                4/4 

Directors who were unable to attend the Board Meeting and had formally requested leave were appropriately granted 
leave of absence from the meeting by the Board in accordance with legal requirements.

Executive Director Serving Other Organization
No executive director concurrently holds a position as a non-executive director in any other company. Likewise, the 
Company does not remunerate any non-executive director for their service on the Board of Directors.

Director Training Program (DTP)
In terms of Regulation 19 of Chapter VI of the Code of Corporate Governance presently, six (6) directors of the Company 
have already acquired certification under the Director’s Training Program. The remaining one (1) director shall obtain 
certification within stipulated time frame.

System Audit by External Specialist
The internal system is certified by bureau veritas, and special external specialist are also appointed by the Company 
who are experts in providing services to enhance credibility of internal control systems.

Security Clearance of Directors
All the director appointed by the Company are Pakistan national, the Company has a special policy for obtaining 
security clearance of each director before they are being elected by the members of the Company in a meeting called 
for the appointment of directors.

Meeting Held Outside Pakistan
All the meetings held during the year were held at the registered address of the Company in Pakistan.

Statement of Compliance
The Company has adhered to the Best Practices of Corporate Governance, as outlined in the Listing Regulations of the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange, with no significant deviations noted for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024.

Pattern of Shareholdings
Pattern of Shareholding of the Company in accordance with the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Code of Corporate 
Governance as of September 30, 2024, is annexed. 

Performance Evaluation of CEO, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board 
The evaluation of Board’s role of oversight and its effectiveness is appraised by the Board itself. The main areas of focus 
are:  

	� 	Achieving corporate goals and objectives as defined in the Company’s vision and mission statements. 

	� Strategy formulation and dissemination of directions to the management for sustainable planning and 
operation; and 

	� 	Evaluation of Board’s Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities as per 
defined TOR’s.

The questionnaires have been designed considering pertinent criteria including effectiveness, accountability, planning, 
leadership, and strategy formulation by the Board and its committees. A distinct questionnaire for evaluating the Chief 
Executive Officer’s performance has also been created. The assessment of the CEO’s performance is conducted by the 
Directors. To enhance transparency, the Company intends to involve third-party Chartered Accountants to compile 
results and generate a report for the Board of Directors. However, the internal evaluation of the report’s contents is 
conducted, identifying areas that necessitate improvement.

Audit Committee 
As on date of this report, the Audit Committee include of three Directors, two of whom are independent directors, and 
one of them is non-executive director viz., Mr. Jawad Ur Rehaman Khan Lodhi as Chairman, and Mr. Amjad Javed 
Aftab and Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg as Members. The details of terms of reference of the Audit Committee, number 
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and dates of meeting held, attendance, among others are given separately in the attached Corporate Governance 
Report. Additionally, the board ensures that the Chairman of the audit committee is in attendance at the Annual General 
Meetings (AGM) and address all queries of shareholders.

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (Hr&R) Committee 
The committee is composed of three members, all of whom are non-executive directors, including an independent 
director. The terms of reference for this committee have been set up in alignment with the guidelines outlined in the 
Code of Corporate Governance, 2019.

In accordance with its mandate, the Committee convenes to assess and propose all facets of compensation, 
organizational policies, and employee development policies related to the remuneration of senior executives. 
Furthermore, the Committee is entrusted with approving all matters pertaining to the remuneration of executive 
directors and members of the management committee. Throughout the fiscal year 2023/24, the committee conducted 
one meeting to address these responsibilities.

Related Party Transactions 
All the transactions carried out with related parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis, which were 
duly approved by the Audit Committee and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2017 and SECP Listing Regulations. 

Policy for Related Party Transactions are prepared in accordance with Rule 3 of The Companies (Related Party 
Transactions and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 2018” which covers following minimum 
conditions, 	

	� information required for the related parties with whom transactions are to be made including nature of 
related party relationship at the time of approval in board meetings or general meetings. 

	� 	limitations or conditions that may be applicable in case of related party transactions.

	� 	potential risks of related party transactions and mitigating measures.

	� 	procedure to be followed in case of failure to present related party transactions for approval by the 
appropriate forum within prescribed time.

	� pricing policy.

Remuneration Policy 
The company has implemented a Remuneration Policy applicable to executive and non-executive directors, as well 
as individuals potentially appointed to Senior Management and Key Managerial positions. This policy, approved by 
the Board of Directors based on the Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s recommendation, determines the 
remuneration for these roles. 

Significant Events after Reporting Period
There is no significant event occurred during the year after the reporting period.

Statement of Unreserved Compliance
The Company’s financial statements have been formulated in adherence to the international financial reporting 
standards stipulated by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), as communicated in the Companies Act, 
2017.

Additionally, there are specific standards and interpretations that are pending implementation in Pakistan, as outlined 
in note 4.3.2 of the financial statements. Nevertheless, the management is of the opinion that these forthcoming 
standards and interpretations will not exert any substantial impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Syed Anwar Hussain Shahid
Chief Executive

Lahore: December 24, 2024
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Statement of Compliance
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
Name of Company:   JAUHARABAD SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Year Ended:   September 30, 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are six as per the following:

Gender Number

Male 05

Female 01
The Current Board of Directors of the Company was elected on September 07, 2023 and has appropriate skills, experience, 
independence and knowledge of the Company to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively. Currently, the total number 
of directors are six and remaining one director will be elected within stipulated time.

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg

Ms. Faiza Iftikhar

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Ghias-Ul-Hassan

Mr. Amjed Javed Aftab

Executive Director Mr. Syed Anwar Hussain Shahid

Mr. Saif-Ur-Rehman

Female Director Ms. Faiza Iftikhar

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they
were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of Companies Act 2017 (the Act) and CCG
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations.

9. In terms of Regulation 19 of Chapter VI of the Code of Corporate Governance Presently, all directors of the
Company have completed their Directors’ Training Program.

10. The Board approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, as and when the appointments were made, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. Chief Accountant and Chief Executive duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.
Chief Financial Officer position is vacant.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Chairman Ms. Faiza Iftikhar Independent Director

Member Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg Independent Director

Member Mr. Amjed Javed Aftab Non-Executive Director

HR & Remuneration Committee

Chairman Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg Independent Director

Member Mr. Syed Anwar Hussain Shahid Chief Executive

Member Mr. Ghias-Ul-Hasan Non-Executive Director
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Risk Management Committee
Chairman Mr. Saif-Ur-Rehman Executive Director

Member Mr. Amjed Javed Aftab Non-Executive Director

Nomination Committee
Chairman Ms. Faiza Iftikhar Independent Director

Member Mr. Ghias-Ul-Hasan Independent Director

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

Meetings Frequency

Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings held during the financial year ended September 30, 
2024

HR & Remuneration Committee One meeting was held during the financial year ended September 30, 2024

Risk Management Committee One meeting was held during the financial year ended September 30, 2024

Nomination Committee One meeting was held during the financial year ended September 30, 2024

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.
16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under

the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that
they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)and that
they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company 
secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the Act, CCG Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors
have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that the Company is compliant with all the mandatory requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8,
27, 32, 33 and 36 of the regulation have been complied with.

Muhammad Aamir Beg
Chairman

December 24, 2024
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Independent Auditors’ Review Report
To the members of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations”) prepared by the Board of Directors of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (the 
Company) for the year ended September 30, 2024, in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the 
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of 
the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. 
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of the various documents prepared by 
the Company to comply with the Regulations.

 As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion 
on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s Corporate Governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are 
only required and have ensured compliance with this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party 
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in 
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024.

Further we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected in the 
paragraph reference where it is stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Paragraph reference Description

Chapter VIII
Regulation 25

The Company is not in compliance with Regulation 25 of the Regulations, which requires 
that the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), along with the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), sign the 
financial statements of a listed company. The position of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) vacant, 
so the financial statements of the Company have not been signed by a Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO).

Chapter II 
Regulation 6

The Company is not in compliance with Regulation 6 of the Regulations, which requires that 
each listed company shall have at least two or one third members of board, whichever is 
higher, as independent directors. The Company has two independent directors which is lower 
than 2.33(One third of minimum directors as per Section 154 of Companies Act, 2017) and 
no explanation has been given for rounding down of fraction. Further the Company does not 
have seven directors as required under Section 154 of Companies Act, 2017.

Place: Lahore	 UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
Date: January 06, 2025	 Chartered Accountants

(Mr. Ibne Hassan)UDIN: CR202410300QOXigTeKh
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Diversity Policy
The Company has a diverse and balanced Board, which not only represents the shareholders but also provides 
a mix of professional expertise in leadership, finance, legal, regulatory and business management skills and 
experiences covering adequately all areas of JSML’s business undertakings. Furthermore, in compliance with 
requirements of Code of Corporate Governance, a female director is also present on the Board of Directors. 

The Board has also approved a gender diversity policy to provide a framework for governance of procedures and 
practices relating to enhancement of Gender Diversity within the Organization.

The Board has given categorical instructions that the Company shall pursue high standards of Human Resource 
Management practices to encourage participation in workforce from diverse groups, assist them in developing in-
demand skills and create opportunities for them to advance into leadership roles within the Company.

The Company assign gender diversity targets to its senior management and incorporate these into their Key 
Performance Indicators (KPIs). The Human Resource Department will share workforce diversity trackers with senior 
management from time to time so they are fully aware of the progress and take appropriate actions, when required 
and will conduct Gender Pay Gap Analysis relevant to the industry, in order to bridge any gender, pay gap.
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Quality Assurance Policy
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is dedicated to producing premium-grade sugar through the implementation of a 
robust, integrated Quality and Food Safety Management System. Leveraging new sugarcane varieties introduced 
by Government Research Institutions, the Company is committed to transforming agronomic practices among 
farmers in the Khushab region. The Cane Research and Development Department regularly organizes seminars, in 
collaboration with Government Research Institutions, fertilizer companies, and pesticide firms, to educate farmers 
on advanced harvesting techniques, such as pit farming, and provide guidelines on optimizing cane yield while 
minimizing losses. In order to ensure the sustainability of specific crop varieties and reduce reliance on unnecessary 
pesticides, the Company’s Bio-Laboratory distributes Trichogramma Cards to farmers as a natural method to prevent 
pest infestations. During the crop season, the Cane Team focuses on stringent Quality Control and Assurance 
measures, emphasizing reduced field-to-mill transit times post-harvest and ensuring comprehensive testing of 
sugarcane upon arrival through the Online Cane Laboratory.

The Company is firmly committed to consistently meeting sugar standard requirements while driving continuous 
improvement in its quality management system to enhance production, operational, and organizational efficiencies. 
This dedication is encapsulated in the Company’s quality policy, which pledges to fulfill the requirements and 
expectations of its customers and stakeholders. Quality assurance oversees all operational activities by monitoring 
process parameters and product attributes, with a focus on stability studies, validations, addressing customer 
complaints, and investigating deviations in coordination with the main laboratory, process, and mill house teams. 
During the crushing season, sugar monitoring and testing are conducted in adherence to Good Laboratory Practices 
(GLP) guidelines, aligned with the high-quality standards established by the Pakistan Standard and Quality Control 
Authority (PSQCA) and Punjab Food Authority (PFA). Furthermore, the Company aims to obtain ISO certifications to 
reinforce its commitment to excellence.
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Performance Management Policy
The Company is committed to build strong corporate culture that is shaped by motivated team who demonstrate deep 
believe in company’s vision and values. Success of the Company undoubtedly lies in the tired-less efforts of its human 
resources. The Company has developed a performance review process, based on following objectives, in order to 
recognize employees’ contributions and right compensation.

	� To establish clarity in job description through employee recruitment plan to make efficient out from human 
resource.

	� To give a sense of direction and challenge to the individual and their team through role clarity.

	� To determine continuous critical analysis of objectives and performance standard of each job.  

	� To provide effective employee orientation and integrate with culture of organization. 

	� To ensure aligning of employee’s personal goal with organizational goal to enhance productivity and profitability. 

	� To help different functions and departments to go beyond targets and benchmarks and take quantum jumps.

	� To achieve targets and bench marks, develop culture of cross-functional meetings.

	� To build open communication culture through regular feedback.

	� To create supportive and empowering corporate culture in the organization.

	� To Identify talent for succession planning.

	� To Identify employees with long term growth potential.

	� To Identify employees performing below expectation and what inputs are required to improve their performance.

	� To provide on-going training to improve low performers as needed.

	� To ensure growth of employees for organizational perpetuity.

	� To creating total quality environment by enhancing the commitment of people in terms of productivity, quality, 
technology, structure and systems.

	� To assure effective reward mechanism to boost employee performance, individual performance is not linked to 
group performance.
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Conflict of Interest Policy
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited recognizes the importance of conducting business with honesty, transparency, and 
sound corporate governance. To uphold these principles, the Company has established a Conflict-of-Interest Policy 
to prevent directors and employees from engaging in Company matters where they may have personal, financial, or 
other interests. This policy applies to all prospective and current employees, independent contractors, and individuals 
acting on behalf of the Company. The Board of Directors emphasizes the duty of confidentiality (protecting insider 
information), the duty of loyalty (prioritizing board responsibilities over external interests), and fiduciary responsibilities 
in financial and legal matters. Under the policy, board members are prohibited from participating in discussions, reports, 
or votes on issues in which they have any interest, except when their interest solely arises from their role as a director. 
Additionally, directors are restricted from trading in the Company’s shares and must report any share trades conducted 
by their dependents or associated entities that come to their knowledge. The Board is committed to adhering to defined 
policies and procedures to avoid actual or perceived conflicts of interest that may arise during business operations.

Disclosure of Interest by Directors
Every director of the Company, including their spouse and minor children, must disclose any direct or indirect interest or 
involvement in a contract or arrangement entered into, or proposed to be entered into, by or on behalf of the Company. 
The nature of such interest must be disclosed at a Board meeting.
Directors are obligated to report any actual or perceived conflicts of interest at Board meetings in accordance with 
prevailing legal requirements. If a conflict or potential conflict is disclosed, the concerned Board member is prohibited 
from participating in discussions related to that agenda item. Furthermore, the member who disclosed the conflict is 
not permitted to vote on the matter.

Abidance of Laws/Rules
Conform to and abide by all the legal and standing requirements and Code of Corporate Governance while performing 
their duties and obey all lawful orders and directives. All Board members shall comply with and observe all applicable 
related statutory requirements, regulatory directives and JSML policies.

Integrity
Board members shall adhere to all legal and standing requirements, as well as the Code of Corporate Governance, 
while performing their duties. They are required to obey all lawful orders and directives issued in the course of their 
responsibilities. Additionally, all Board members must comply with applicable statutory requirements, regulatory 
directives, and the policies of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (JSML).
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Supply Chain Management Policy
Supply chain management is the active management of supply chain activities to maximize customer value and 
achieve a sustainable competitive advantage. Sugar Industry is one of major agro processing sector. Delegation and 
competitiveness in agro based industries require new forms of coordination between farmers and other stakeholders, 
to maximize sugar production with minimum overheads a good network of all resources is in place. The challenge 
of greater competitiveness in field aggregating cane from thousands of growers at a particular factory increases the 
significance of supply chain management in agro business. Although mills economic zone consists of average small 
farm size. The Company maintains that the smaller farmer is a valuable part of the cane growers base in the region. 
This underlies the importance of incentivize them like sharing of agri tolls and technology. 

Sugarcane Management 

Cane management is the most critical function in the sugar sector. The kind of seeds the cane growers use, their 
plantation techniques, prudent use of fertilizers and robust ratoon management are essential in farmers being able 
to deliver superior cane quality.

Seed Management and Development

The Company focused on the development of new cane varieties demonstrating superior strains (high recovery 
and yield). The Company entered into collaborations with Faisalabad research institution various research institutes 
with a track record in the development of superior seeds. These seeds were showcased through experiments on the 
Company’s demonstration plots; once deemed successful, these seeds were shifted for use in commercial farms. 

Ratoon Management

Cane growers, especially those in Khushab Zone, the Company conducted workshops to popularize ratoon 
management, engaged tractors mounted with insecticidal and fertilizer sprayers (to safeguard ratoon from black 
bugs that cause yellowing and malnutrition), gap-filling and irrigation followed by fertilizer spraying.

Innovative Planting Techniques

The Company’s cane management team trained farmers in innovative planting methods (trench planting, wide row 
spacing, intercropping and twin row planting) to enhance yield, recovery and cane quality.
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Insider Trading Policy
The Company has a stringent policy on insider trading and securities transactions, which is periodically circulated to 
all employees. This policy prohibits employees from using inside information for direct or indirect transactions in the 
Company’s shares. Trading in Company shares is not permitted during closed periods. Trading is only allowed during 
open periods, typically within two weeks following the announcement of quarterly, half-yearly, or annual results. 
Employees must provide prior written notification to the Company Secretary before executing any transactions. After 
completing the transaction, they must report it to the Company Secretary within two days, including details of the 
purchase or sale of shares. Furthermore, no opposite transactions are allowed within six months. For example, if 
someone buys shares, they cannot sell them within six months to profit from the transaction.

Directors are prohibited from trading, either directly or indirectly, in the Company’s securities, whether on their own 
account or their relative’s account, if they possess any unpublished price-sensitive information. Directors who hold 
such information must not communicate it, either directly or indirectly, to others who may trade based on it.

If a director or their spouse buys, sells, or takes any beneficial position in the Company’s shares, they must immediately 
notify the Company Secretary in writing. The director must provide detailed information, including the price, number 
of shares, form of share certificates (whether physical or electronic within the Central Depository System), and the 
nature of the transaction. Additionally, no director is allowed to trade in the Company’s shares, directly or indirectly, 
during the closed period as determined by the Board of Directors.
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Integrated Management System Policy
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (JSML) is committed to achieving excellence in quality and food safety. This commitment 
is the shared responsibility of both management and employees across all functions. JSML aims to create a safe and 
healthy working environment, while minimizing any negative impact on the environment and local communities. The 
company is dedicated to offering high-quality, halal, and safe products at affordable prices.

The Company is also committed to:

	� Understanding and addressing the organization’s context while working to achieve high customer satisfaction by consistently 
delivering quality, safe, and halal products through ongoing improvement of its Integrated Management System.

	� Adhering to all relevant national and international legal and regulatory requirements concerning its products and activities, as well 
as the Integrated Management System requirements and customer agreements related to finished product specifications.

	� Identifying goals and training needs by regularly reviewing and monitoring processes and activities to ensure the competencies 
required for the Integrated Management System.

	� Protecting and enhancing the white refined sugar market, as well as improving product quality and food safety, through the 
effective implementation of the Integrated Management System.

	� Continuously enhancing the performance of the Integrated Management System, products, processes, infrastructure, operational 
environment, and human resources through ongoing review and monitoring.
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Safety of Records Policy
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited, in accordance with corporate requirements related to day-to-day business operations 
and administrative controls, generates increasing volumes of records. To efficiently manage these records, the 
Company is implementing a comprehensive policy for their creation, management, retention, security, and disposal 
(including both paper and electronic records) in line with the timeframe specified under Section 220 of the Companies 
Act 2017. Without a robust policy and protocols addressing key aspects such as: i) which records to retain, ii) where to 
store records, iii) who is responsible for maintaining records, and iv) when to retain them, the Company risks exposure 
to potential penalties and legal consequences. To mitigate these risks, the Company has developed a comprehensive 
records management policy focused on achieving clear objectives of governance transparency, data protection, 
regulatory compliance, and cost reduction.

a) Ensure staff can perform consistently, with full awareness of the processes, decisions, and actions that drive the

business.

b) Provide a comprehensive freedom of information service across the Company to foster collegiality and knowledge 

sharing.

c)	 Ensure the availability of credible and authoritative evidence to safeguard the rights of the Company, its staff, and 

any other parties impacted by its activities.

d) Establish that records are owned by the Company, not by individuals or specific teams.

e) Preserve corporate memory, ensuring that the passage of time does not affect access to or availability of corporate 

knowledge resources.



Annual Report’ 24 | Governance 67

Disaster Recovery Plan
Disaster recovery strategy ensures that every reasonable measure has been taken to identify The disaster recovery 
strategy ensures that all reasonable measures are taken to identify and mitigate potential risks within the processing 
environment. While the most effective disaster recovery plan is one that is never needed, risk avoidance remains a 
critical element of the strategy. Through dynamic planning, clear communication, and robust risk management, the 
Company is well-equipped to manage the most critical aspects of the recovery plan smoothly. Key elements include:

	� Ensuring business continuity in the Company’s production operations.

	� Ensuring workers understand the shutdown process with a positive, neutral approach.

	� Protecting the Company’s brand image in the market.

	� Sending early warnings to the Board or corporate office when necessary.

	� Preparing a crisis management team to respond effectively in emergencies.

	� Managing crises in an organized and efficient manner.

	� Limiting the impact of a crisis on other areas of operation.

	� Providing training for personnel directly involved in executing the recovery plan.

The Company has adopted a Disaster Recovery Plan to ensure the continuity of infrastructure and applications, utilizing 
all possible resources in the event of a disaster. Whether natural or human-induced, it is essential to assess the situation 
quickly and accurately. If identified as a disaster, the emergency should be declared as soon as possible. The shift in-
charge, who is always present in the unit, will assess the hazard or calamity and immediately report it to Management. 
The emergency may involve the entire unit or a specific section, depending on the nature of the disaster. The shift in-
charge will also activate the alarm bell in each section, as appropriate.



68 Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited

Occupational Health &  Safety Management Policy
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is committed to developing, promoting, and achieving the highest standards of Health, 
Safety, and Environment (HSE) operations. Ensuring health and safety requires active involvement and commitment 
from both management and employees. The Company encourages open communication between employees and 
higher-level administrators to better integrate the safety, health, and environmental policies into daily operations. This 
approach has led to a significant reduction in the number of incidents per machine-hour.

The Company’s primary goal is to minimize adverse environmental and health impacts arising from its operations, 
conserve resources, and adhere to all legal regulations. Continuous efforts are made to mitigate accidental risks by 
providing safety equipment, fire management tools, and air emission monitoring systems. To enhance understanding 
among employees, particularly those at lower levels, the Company conducts presentations highlighting risks 
associated with machinery and the importance of using protective equipment. Safety measures and instructions are 
also communicated in vernacular languages to ensure clarity and comprehension.
Management prioritizes the elimination of hazards and reduction of risk factors through systematic planning and clear 
objectives. Health and safety are central to every in-house and senior management meeting agenda. Additionally, 
these concerns are incorporated into the SMART goals of department heads and senior leaders. A strong commitment 
to policy compliance has resulted in the conclusion of the year with no reportable occupational illnesses.

The Company conducts regular health-focused inspections of plant equipment and facilities, alongside routine 
monitoring of employee health. Health awareness sessions on essential topics such as basic lifesaving techniques, 
medical emergency response, and first aid are organized at the factory and head office. Training in Basic Life Support 
equips individuals to recognize and respond to life-threatening emergencies effectively.

Maintaining health and safety standards at all mills and offices remains a top priority for Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited. 
The Company actively manages health and safety risks and continually improves procedures to reduce, remove, or 
control risks associated with fires, accidents, or injuries, ensuring the safety of both employees and visitors.
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Social & Environmental Responsibility
Human resources are the cornerstone of any organization, particularly in a knowledge-driven economy. Jauharabad 
Sugar Mills Limited is dedicated to creating an environment that nurtures talent, fosters enterprise, and promotes growth 
within an open and supportive culture, aligned with its “HR Vision.” Sustainable human resource management focuses 
on efficient recruitment processes that balance individual skill enhancement with organizational competitiveness. 
Human Resource Management (HRM) is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy, fostering leadership, 
individual accountability, and teamwork. The Company recognizes that its success depends on the quality of its human 
resources, the most valuable asset contributing to sustained growth.

As a pioneer in Pakistan’s sugar sector, the Company employs a diverse range of skilled professionals, many of whom 
are affiliated with prestigious local and international universities. To safeguard employee rights, the Company provides 
healthcare, a safe and secure work environment, and fair compensation. The HRM policy aims to achieve the following 
objectives:

	� Candidates undergo a comprehensive recruitment and selection process to ensure the right individual with the appropriate 
experience is hired at the right time and offered a competitive compensation package.

	� Management develops philosophies and practices aimed at promoting motivation and retaining the most talented employees 
in the organization.

	� Regular skill enhancement workshops and seminars are conducted for hardworking and motivated employees to further refine 
their abilities and strengthen their contributions to the team.

	� The Company actively encourages young talent and recent graduates to join its workforce. 

	� An annual recognition event is held to reward employees who have made significant contributions, fostering motivation and 
encouraging continuous improvement and innovation within teams.

	� Recognizing the challenges faced by individuals with disabilities, the Company maintains a defined ratio for employing persons 
with disabilities, contributing to a sustainable improvement in their quality of life.
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Policy to Encourage Shareholders’ 
Participation in Annual General Meeting
The Company ensures that the interest of the Shareholders is protected. In order to ensure their participation in general 
meetings, JSML management takes many steps including:

	� All notices related to the Shareholders’ meetings are being announced timely through Pakistan Stock Exchange and also 
published in newspapers in English and Urdu language as per the specified timeline and requirements.

	� All notices of the Shareholders’ meetings are dispatched at the registered addresses of the Shareholders available with the 
Company as per regulatory requirement to acquaint them with the agenda of the meeting.

	� Annual Report is being sent to each member of the Company before the AGM in electronic form and in hard copy form who 
asked for the same.

	� Shareholders are facilitated and encouraged in appointing proxies in case they are unable to attend the AGM in person. For this 
purpose, proxies in English and Urdu Language is sent to the members along with the notices and also available on our website.

	� Shareholders are encouraged to comment, raise queries and provide feedback in the meeting.

	� It is also ensured to comply with all the regulatory requirements and takes all possible steps to encourage attendance of minority 
shareholders in general meetings.
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Stakeholders’ Engagement/Grievance Policy
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited strives to develop and maintain trustworthy relations with its stakeholders, including 
shareholders and investors. In this relation a policy has also been in place and approved by the Board of Directors. It 
emphasizes timely and clear disclosure of all material information to them, without advantage to any particular investor, 
in order to enable them to make informed decisions. Further, all information disclosed to the public is in accordance 
with the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (“PSX”), as well as the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019. 

The Company also gives its shareholder the option to express their grievances and any other enquiries to Corporate 
department and in General Meetings which are addressed by company secretary. Moreover, as per PSX requirement 
the JSML organizes every year a corporate briefing for all stakeholders to take their concerns and discuss the direction 
of the company. Main principles of the Investors Grievance Policy are to dealt all complaints raised by investors with 
courtesy, fairness, in a timely manner and to treat all the investors fairly and equally at all times.
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Key Performance Indicators
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Quarterly Performance Analysis

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr Total 

Sales - net  2,456,044  1,671,309  776,889  3,092,210  7,996,452 

Cost of sales  (2,248,482)  (1,157,649)  (503,746)  (3,077,269)  (6,987,146)

Gross profit  207,562  513,660  273,143  14,941  1,009,306 

Distribution cost  (3,660)  (6,271)  (820)  (13,415)  (24,166)

Administrative expenses  (55,097)  (93,952)  (33,842)  (54,802)  (237,693)

Operating profit  148,805  413,437  238,481  (53,276)  747,447 

Finance cost  (53,200)  (334,146)  (351,287)  (210,461)  (949,094)

Other income/expenses  (2,911)  18,125  15,294  137,733  168,241 

Profit before taxation  92,694  97,416  (97,512)  (126,004)  (33,407)

Taxation  (36,263)  24,521  29,906  17,122  35,286 

Profit after taxation  56,431  121,937  (67,606)  (108,882)  1,880

1st Qtr 3rd Qtr2nd Qtr 4th Qtr

21% 27%51% 01%

Gross Profit

Sales-Net	 Rupees in milllion Financial Expenses	 Rupees in milllion

Operating Profit

1st Qtr 3rd Qtr2nd Qtr 4th Qtr

20% 32%55% -7%

Administrative Expenses

1st Qtr 3rd Qtr2nd Qtr 4th Qtr

23% 14%40% 23%

Finance Cost Ratio

1st Qtr 3rd Qtr2nd Qtr 4th Qtr

6% 37%35% 22%

1,958 1,945 9682,456 1,671 777 2,052 3,092

1st Qtr 3rd Qtr2nd Qtr 4th Qtr

2023 2024 2023 20242023 2024 2023 2024 2023 20242023 2024 2023 2024

1st Qtr 3rd Qtr2nd Qtr 4th Qtr

33 203 23653 334 351 88 210

2023 2024
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Comments on Quarterly Performance

	� This Quarter Sales Contributed 30.7% to the total annual sales, driven by higher sugar prices.
	� 	Gross profit was 20.6% of the annual total, with a gross margin of 8.5%, due to lower cost of 

carry forward stock and subsequent price increases.
	� 	Finance costs were minimal at 5.6% of the annual total, reflecting limited borrowing needs.
	� 	Achieved a net profit due to robust revenues, effective resource utilization, and controlled 

expenses.Quarter

Quarter

	� 	Sales declined by 31.9% compared to Q1, contributing 20.9% to the annual total, due to 
reduction in sugar prices.

	� 	Gross profit increased to 50.9% of the annual total, with a gross margin of 30.7%, driven by 
higher by-product sales and contributions.

	� Finance cost rose to 35.2% of the annual total, increasing 528.2% compared to Q1, due to 
availment of short-term borrowings for cane purchases and substantial  increase in interest 
rates.

	� Net profit achieved in Q2, alongside Q1, was supported by strong by-product contributions.

Quarter

	� 	Sales further declined by 53.5% compared to Q2, contributing only 9.7% to the annual sales, 
due to depressed sugar prices.

	� 	Gross profit dropped by 46.8% compared to Q2, contributing 27.1% of the annual total, with a 
gross margin of 35.2%.

	� 	Finance cost remained high, contributing 37.0% of the annual cost, as short-term borrowings 
peaked to sustain working capital needs.

	� 	The quarter ended with a net loss of PKR -67.6 million, erasing earlier profitability due to high 
costs and reduced revenue.

	� Sales rebounded by 297.9% compared to Q3, contributing 38.7% to the annual sales, driven 
by post-harvest demand and export of sugar.

	� 	Gross profit contributed only 1.5% to the annual total, with a gross margin of 0.5%, reflecting 
lower sugar prices.

	� 	Finance cost decreased by 40.1% compared to Q3, contributing 22.2% to the annual finance 
cost, due to timely repayment of short-term borrowings.

	� 	Ended with a net loss of PKR -108.9 million, as compressed margins and higher fixed costs 
further impacted profitability.

	� 	The Company accumulated net profit was decreased to Rs 1.88 M which was due to low sugar 
prices in second half of the year.

Quarter
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Seven Years at a Glance
FY2024 FY2023 FY2022 FY2021 FY2020 FY2019 FY2018

Financial Position (Rs. 000)

Non current assets 10,277,529  9,818,039  9,517,500  5,125,275  5,128,055  3,276,400  3,240,663 

Current assets  4,066,646  2,418,904  2,283,066  607,257  748,310  1,084,691  1,448,770 

Current liabilities  4,100,823  2,352,071  2,220,250  584,398  677,845  1,080,800  1,435,214 

Non current liabilities  901,435  1,019,943  1,059,043  385,960  502,237  380,357  509,236 

Shareholders equity  9,341,918  8,864,928  8,521,273  4,762,174  4,696,282  2,899,934  2,744,983 

Profit or Loss (Rs. 000)

Sales - net  7,996,452  6,925,893  5,180,431  4,924,089  3,502,837  3,441,483  2,195,040 

Gross profit  1,009,306  1,073,985  828,564  578,511  604,065  653,729  45,706 

EBITDA  1,224,127  1,128,420  748,076  523,603  538,627  573,768  282,354 

EBIT  915,688  826,375  604,741  387,844  427,569  462,948  174,028 

Profit before tax  (33,406)  266,238  270,912  168,289  196,391  257,269  35,967 

Profit after tax  1,880  212,233  127,721  101,751  213,329  182,717  5,116 

Cash Flows (Rs. 000)

Cash flows from Operating activities  (992,834)  608,025  (611,580)  126,805  597,801  957,814  (756,922)

Cash flows from Investing activities  (765,011)  (603,169)  (343,577)  (135,061)  (166,315)  (112,480)  (244,664)

Cash flows from Financing activities  1,898,816  43,216  919,161  (164,265)  (266,507)  (832,999)  1,020,992 

Cash and bank at the beginning of the year 80,518  32,446  68,442  223,834  58,855  46,519  27,113 

Cash and bank at the end of the year 221,488  80,518  380,079  68,442  223,834  58,855  46,519 

Capital Structure Ratios

Debt to capital employed ratio 0.35 0.28 0.28 0.17 0.20  0.34  0.41 

Interest coverage ratio 0.96 1.48 1.81 1.77 1.85  2.25  1.26 

Financial leverage ratio 0.54 0.38 0.38 0.20 0.25  0.50  0.71 

Weighted average cost of debt 23.10% 22.13% 13.68% 10.00% 13.43% 12.70% 9.47%

Non Financial Ratios

% of plant availability 87.10 86.25 82.02 81.52 77.80  90.84  82.63 

Customer satisfaction index 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99  99.99  99.99 

Net assets per share 273.73 259.75 249.68 139.54 137.61  84.97  80.43 

Operational Performance for the Last Seven Years

Operating days  103 103  146  124  104  96  131 

Cane crushed  657,997  651,476  872,378  533,772  425,433  431,121  441,646 

Sugar produced  64,874  64,198  85,774  52,925  41,150  44,776  42,846 

Sugar recovery  9.86  9.85  9.83  9.91  9.67  10.39  9.70 

Molasses produced  26,450  29,630  34,909  22,923  20,180  20,304  21,835 

Molasses recovery  4.02  4.55  4.00  4.23  4.74  4.71  4.94 

Bagasse produced  191,819  190,744  251,897  160,132  127,630  127,698  133,187 

V.F. Cake produced  19,740  19,363  25,946  15,871  12,763  13,494  13,249 

Others

Inventory as % of Assets Cost 1.89 3.04 2.33 1.86 1.79  2.37  2.21 

Maintenance Cost as % of operating expenses 9.47 12.39 11.04 16.82 10.28  13.99  32.81 
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Seven Years at a Glance
Ratio Analysis FY2024 FY2023 FY2022 FY2021 FY2020 FY2019 FY2018

Profitability Ratios

Gross profit to sales 12.62% 15.51% 15.99% 11.75% 17.25% 19.00% 2.08%
Net profit after tax to sales 0.02% 3.06% 2.47% 2.07% 6.09% 5.31% 0.23%
EBITDA to sales 15.31% 16.29% 14.44% 10.63% 15.38% 16.67% 12.86%
Shareholders' funds  9,341,918  8,864,928  8,521,273  4,762,174  4,696,282  2,899,934  2,744,983 
Return on Equity 0.02% 2.39% 1.50% 2.14% 4.54% 6.30% 0.19%
Return on Capital Employed 9.80% 9.32% 7.10% 8.14% 9.10% 15.96% 6.34%
Operating leverage ratio  0.70  1.09  10.74  (0.23)  (4.29)  2.92  0.53 

Liquidity Ratios

Current ratio  0.99  1.03  1.03  1.04  1.10  1.00  1.01 
Quick ratio  0.28  0.38  0.32  0.88  0.82  0.64  0.48 
Cash to current liabilities 5.40% 3.42% 1.46% 11.71% 33.02% 5.45% 3.24%
Cash flow from operations to sales 1.42% 17.75% (5.40%) 7.59% 25.79% 36.26% (27.67%)
Cash flow to capital expenditure (129.18%) 100.43% (175.93%) 91.19% 355.90% 860.98% (301.17%)
Cash flow coverage ratio (36.74%) 47.63% (52.98%) 60.12% 172.65% 181.30% (54.74%)
Free cash flow  490,838  468,985  257,252  318,015  387,596  387,969  172 

Activity Ratios

Inventory turnover  3.16  3.78  5.22  30.27  9.93  4.88  3.28 
No. of days in Inventory  115.63  96.62  69.90  12.06  36.74  74.86  111.22 
Debtor turnover  272.93  1,203.20  1,590.09  5,133.21  25.79  11.52  13.36 
No. of days in Receivables  1.34  0.30  0.23  0.07  14.15  31.69  27.33 
Creditor turnover  6.78  6.46  7.50  15.02  6.85  7.86  7.15 
No. of days in Payables  53.83  56.49  48.66  24.29  53.29  46.44  51.05 
Operating Cycle  63.14  40.43  21.47  (12.17)  (2.40)  60.11  87.50 
Total assets turnover  0.60  0.58  0.59  0.85  0.68  0.76  0.51 
Fixed assets turnover  0.80  0.72  0.71  0.96  0.83  1.06  0.69 

Investment Valuation Ratios

Earnings per share 0.06 6.22 3.74 2.98 6.25  5.35  0.22 
Price Earning ratio 396.43 2.61 3.91 7.80 3.54  1.90  204.55 
Dividend Yield 0.00% 6.15% 6.84% 4.30% 4.52% 9.86% 2.22%
Dividend Payout ratio 0.00% 16.08% 26.74% 33.56% 16.00% 18.69% 454.55%
Dividend Cover ratio 0.06 6.22 3.74 2.98 6.25  5.35  0.18 
Cash Dividend per share 0.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Market value per share 21.84 16.25 14.61 23.24 22.14  10.14  45.00 
Market value per share-highest 26.50 17.74 25.45 30.50 25.63  46.70  57.00 

Market value per share-lowest 15.00 12.00 14.61 18.43 9.77  8.96  38.31 

Break value without revaluation surplus 93.14 75.84 62.46 56.21 52.94  46.84  49.61 
Break value with revaluation surplus 273.73 259.75 249.68 139.54 137.61  84.97  80.43 

Price to book ratio 0.23 0.21 0.23 0.41 0.42  0.22  0.91 

Market capitalization 745,365.41 554,587.36 498,932.04  93,521.22 755,695.75 346,308.70  46,404.84 

Employee Productivity Ratios

Production per employee 78.73 73.37 95.41 66.49 52.15  59.23  53.62 
Revenue per employee 9,704.43 7,915.31 5,762.44 6,186.04 4,439.59  4,552.23  2,747.23 
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Graphical Representation 
Financial

Net Profit After Tax to Sales	 in percentage 

Debt to Capital Employed Ratio	 in times

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2.22 9.86 4.52 4.30 6.84 6.15 0

Earning per Share	 in rupees

Breakup Value per Share	 in rupees

Interest Coverage Ratio	 in times

Dividend Yield	 in percentage

0.23 5,31 6.09 2.07 2.47 3.06 0.02

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

0.22 5.35 6.25 2.98 3.74 6.22 0.06

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

0.10 0.34 0.20 0.17 0.28 0.28 0.340.34

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

49.61 46.84 52.94 56.21 62.46 75.84 93.14

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

1.26 2.25 1.85 1.77 1.81 1.48 0.96

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Current Ratio	 in times

1.01 1.00 1.10 1.04 1.03 1.03 0.99

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Market Value per Share	 in rupees

45.00 10.14 22.14 23.24 14.61 16.25 21.84

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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Graphical Representation 
Operational

 Cane Crushed	 in metric tons in 000 

Sugar Produced	 in metric tons in 000 Sugar Recovery 	 in percentage

Molasses Produced	 in metric tons in 000 Molasses Recovery	 in percentage

VF Cake Produced	 in metric tons in 000  Bagasse Produced	 in metric tons in 000  

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

13.25 13.49 12.76 15.87 25.95 19.36 19.74

4.94 4.71 4.74 4.23 4.00 4.55 4.02

9.7 10.39 9.67 9.91 9.83 9.86 9.85

441.65 431.12 425.43 533.77 872.38 651.48 657.99

133.19 127.70 127.63 160.13 251.90 190.74 191.82

21.84 20.30 20.18 22.92 34.91 29.63 26.45

131 96 104 124 146 103 103

42.85 44.78 41.15 52.92 85.77 64.20 64.87

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Operating Days	 in days

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 20242018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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Non-Financial Indicators
Objective KPI Monitored Future Relevance

M
an

u
factu

red
 C

ap
ital

Product development and innovation Produce high quality sugar for various 
industries including FMCG and 
Pharmaceuticals.

The Company believes in  
innovation and introducing new  
varieties of sugar in Pakistan.

Business Diversification Analyze various prospects of upstream, 
parallel and downstream diversification 
options in Sugar and Allied Industries in 
order to avail the benefit of excess energy 
available with Sugar Mill.

Business diversification is our long-
term objective.

Maintain industry leadership and 
expand sales

Market share, price management and 
identification of new markets.

Leadership is our continuous 
endeavor and has to be 
maintained. 

Invest in operational efficiency and 
economies of scale to maintain it in 
the years to come. 

KPIs shall be relevant in future.

Enhance operational efficiency and 
efficient inventory management

Market share, price management and 
identification of new markets.

Economize on costs – eliminating 
redundancies

Optimization of available resources and 
better allocation of fixed costs.

Sustainability Keep a close eye on Current Ratio, Gearing 
and Interest Cover.

H
u

m
an

 C
ap

ital

Health & Safety of workers Provision of a congenial and clean 
environment along with safety for smooth 
work.

We believe in continuously 
providing environment which 
harmonize the workers efforts in 
higher productivity.Training and Education Continuous training of employees and 

workers. Monitor training need analysis with 
special focus on health and safety at work.

R
elatio

n
sh

ip
 C

ap
ital

Shareholder Value EPS, ROE, Asset Turnover and DPS We value our relationship with all 
our stakeholders therefore, we 
will continue to strive to improve 
shareholders’ value. Improve our 
customer services and maintain 
timely payments.

Stock Value Analyse market price as a measure of 
relationship capita

Suppliers and Customers Relationships Assess the payment stream and ensure 
timely payment. Provide customer with 
maximum support beyond customer 
-supplier relationship.

Intellectual C
apital

Highest product strength at lowest cost 
in industry Maintain industry leadership

Regularly monitor avenues to increase 
product strength. Produce high quality 
sugar to facilitate our customers.

We shall continue to innovate 
products according to the 
changing needs of Customer and 
market demand.

N
atu

ral C
ap

ital

Adopting and promoting environmental 
good practices

The Company has taken multiple steps 
to reduce, reuse and recycle waste (3Rs) 
minimizing natural resource consumption 
and treat any harmful emissions before 
they are released to minimize environment 
footprints.

The Company give core 
importance to environment 
protection and will continue to 
invest for betterment of society.

F
in

an
cial C

ap
ital

Maximizing market share and expanding 
customer base

Consistent growth in sales revenue and 
quality control has enabled the Company 
to increase its share in local market and 
expanding its customer base.

Continuous efforts regarding 
financial and technological 
support of growers will anable the 
company to procure more cane 
which will ultimately incease the 
production and sales volume.
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Financial Indicators		

Budgeted Results		
		
The planed/budgeted sugarcane crushing was of 700,000 MT; however, sugarcane planting of 2023-24 was nearest to previous year 
but increase in competition among mills and higher sugarcane prices, the company was able to crush only 657,997 MT. Additionally, 
the planned sucrose recovery rate was 9.87%, but the actual rate was 9.85%, which leads to a slight decrease in production. As a 
result, the company had to sell fewer quantity of sugar i.e. 59,136 MT with respect to the budgeted 65,000 MT resulting in a decrease 
in revenue of Rs. 793 million. On a positive note, despite the higher KIBOR rate, efficient working capital management allowed for the 
early repayment of some short-term borrowings, saving around Rs. 125 million of finance cost.

2024

Actual Budgeted

MT

Sugar sold 59,136 65,000 

2024

Actual Budgeted

Rs. in “000”

Net sales  7,996,452  8,889,390

Cost of sales  6,987,146  7,555,000

Gross profit 1,009,306  1,334,390

Expenses and taxes  1,007,426 1,133,056

Net profit  1,880 201,334

Methods and Assumptions in Compiling Indicators
			 
A Key Performance Indicator (KPI) should immediately inform the reader how the business is performing which in turn should suggest 
what actions need to be taken. KPIs provide understanding of a company’s performance in key areas and measure to analyze current 
position of the company and likely path the company would follow. KPIs may emerg over time with growth of the Company and 
more information becomes available. Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited has identified and updated the above KPIs that are critical to 
its business. While identifying KPIs, the Company analyzed various indicators, their interpretations and accordingly their extent to 
which they may correctly and clearly communicate the Company’s performance.

 85 JSML Annual Report 2024 | 



Stakeholders’ Relationship
and Engagement





Stakeholder 
Group

Engagement/
Communication Mode

Effect and Value 
to Company Frequency

Needs/Interests/
Topics Identified 
by Stakeholders

Company Response

1 Shareholders/
Investors

•	Annual general 
meeting

•	Extra ordinary 
general meeting

•	Company Secretary
•	Corporate briefing 

sessions

•	Regular and constructive 
dialogue with investors 
and shareholders 
to communicate 
performance update in 
order to build confidence 
and ensure continued 
access to capital

•	Annually
•	As per 

need                                        

•	Future prospects 
of the business

•	Capacity 
enhancements 
and expansions 
etc.                       

The Company is 
committed towards 
transparency of 
financial and non-
financial information, 
timely communication 
for sustainable 
business growth. 

2 Employees •	Routine interactions 
and meetings 
and project based 
collaborations

•	Annual performance 
appraisals

•	HOD's periodic 
meetings

•	Whistle blowing 
option to all 
employee

•	Providing a nurturing and 
friendly work environment 
that helps the Company 
to maintain a dedicated 
and competent workforce

•	Motivated workforce 
supports effective 
implementation 
of strategies

Regular •	Career and 
professional 
growth

•	Training & 
development

The Company gives 
utmost importance 
to transparency in 
employee related affairs; 
and simultaneously 
emphasize on capacity 
/ skill development 
training programs. 

3 Customers/
Consumers

•	Customer visits 
to manufacturing 
facilities

•	Deploying systems 
to improve feedback 
and regular follow-
ups with customers

•	Direct balance 
confirmations 
from debtors

•	Feedback from 
customers in 
engagements enable us 
to develop products and 
advocate for policies that 
better cater to the our 
valued customers needs

Regular •	Competitive 
prices, quality of 
products timely 
deliveries                                                                                                                                    

•	Compliance 
of food safety, 
quality and Halal 
standards etc.

Attractive and competitive 
product offerings; Timely 
deliveries; Ensuring food 
safety, quality and Halal 
related compliance.

4 Banks •	Meetings and 
negotiation are 
held with banks/
financial institutions 
to discuss working 
capital and 
other financing 
requirements

•	 Access to the financial 
contracts such as 
loan facilities at 
competitive prices

Regular •	Payment of 
principle and 
interest on time

•	Maintaining  
different debt 
covenants

The Company ensures on-
time payment of principal 
and interest to its money 
lenders. Debt covenants 
performance is also 
closely monitored.

Stakeholders Relationship and Management

JSML, being a responsible organization understands the importance of stakeholder engagement and treat 
its implications on priority. The Company interact with its stakeholders to seek their opinions and their 
expectations. This process allows the Company to define a timely and adequate response to the issues they 
deem important for our business and for our ability to make an impact that matters.

Identification of Stakeholders
Our management places great focus on identification and engagement with stakeholders. Our sales and 
marketing department is extensively involved in customer analysis to better connect with our customers, to 
expand and update our customer base.  Our supply chain department actively engages with suppliers and 
vendors to develop better relationships. Our corporate department makes efforts to make better relationships 
with our shareholders through direct engagement and corporate briefing sessions. The finance department 
actively communicates with banks, financial institutions, statutory auditors and authorities. The human 
resource department is in continuous connection with employees and the talent pool available in the market.

Stakeholders’ Engagement Process
JSML regularly engages and effectively communicates with its stakeholders. The table sets out our key 
stakeholder groups, some of the ways in which we engage with them, identification of needs/interests and 
how these relationships are likely to affect the performance and value of the entity and Company’s response 
for that;



5 Local 
Community

•	The Company 
actively played 
its role toward 
providing better 
education & health 
related activities to 
our communities

•	Investing in 
education by 
sponsoring 
school and health 
support programs 
& initiatives.   

•	Close relationship with 
local community having 
long term positive impact 
for the Company

Regular •	Negative impact 
of manufacturing 
sites

•	Employment 
opportunity for 
neighboring 
communities                                                                                                   

•	Communal 
services

Company ensures 
compliance of all legal and 
regulatory requirements 
and also possess multiple 
certifications including 
QMS, FSSC 22000, Halal 
(PS 3733). 

6 Government 
and other 
Regulatory 
Bodies

•	Meetings with 
official according to 
business needs   

•	Submission of data 
for compliance

•	Filing application 
for approval and 
registration

•	Understanding and 
ensuring compliance 
with all legal and 
regulatory requirements

•	Dialogue with regulatory 
authorities to address 
matters impacting 
business operations 
and new registrations

Need 
Basis

•	Compliance 
with applicable 
statutory 
regulations 
and laws

Company ensures 
compliance of all statutory 
and legal requirements in 
Company’s affairs.

7 Media •	Different 
communication 
mediums including 
social media used 
on need basis to 
apprise the general 
public about new 
developments 
and activities   

•	By informing the media 
of the developments 
and activities at JSML, 
effective awareness 
is created regarding 
the Company and the 
products and activities, 
indirectly having a 
positive impact

Regular •	Awairness 
regarding 
company, Its 
product and 
its activities

The Company has 
maintained a sound 
system to share timely 
updates regarding any 
material information 
for stakeholders on 
Company’s website. 
Social media 
communication policy 
is also in place. The 
Company ensures its 
presence in all major 
social media platforms.

Corporate Briefing Sessions
In compliance with PSX requirements, the Company conducted Corporate Briefing Session. The briefing 
was well attended by analysts, shareholders and potential investors. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
of the Company presented its financial results, analysis, future prospects and challenges. CEO also 
discussed all the queries raised by participants at a great length.

Minority Shareholders
The management of the Company believe, encourage and ensure the equitable treatment of all 
shareholders including minority shareholders to attend, speak and vote at the general meetings 
and appoint another member as his/her proxy in his/her absence. The notices of general meetings 
are circulated by the Company within the regulatory time frames to the registered addresses of the 
shareholders (including minority shareholders) as well as it is published in Urdu and English newspapers.

Additionally, minority shareholders are also encouraged to attend online AGM through zoom and 
are reminded to attend AGM through email. Apart from this they are encouraged to attend Corporate 
Briefing which is required to be held as per PSX requirement.

Issues Raised at Last AGM
The last Annual General Meeting had a considerable level of attendance and interactive engagement 
session was held with shareholders. All the proposed resolutions were duly approved by shareholders. 
The Annual General Meeting held by the Company, provided an opportunity to put questions to the 
Board during the formal proceedings, while providing shareholders the chance to meet with the Board 
of  Directors and senior management however, no significant issue was raised during the AGM.

Redressal of Investors’ Complaints
No significant complaint was received from investors during the year ended 30 September 2023.



STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION 
AND DISTRIBUTION OF WEALTH

FY2024 FY2023

Rs. 000 % Rs. 000 %

Wealth Generated 
Gross sales to customers  9,335,335 98.2%  8,017,351 100.1%

Add: Other income and finance income  168,241 1.8%  (6,375) -0.1%

Total value added  9,503,576 100.0%  8,010,975 100.0%

Distribution of Wealth
Cost of sales (excluding employees’ remuneration)  6,760,664 70.6%  5,658,683 72.8%

Salaries paid to employees  411,523 4.3%  354,714 4.6%

Marketing, selling and administrative expenses  74,248 0.8%  73,654 0.9%

Government as levies  1,333,950 13.9%  1,085,835 14.0%

Shareholder as dividends  34,128 0.4%  34,128 0.4%

Finance cost  948,606 9.9%  558,387 7.2%

Workers’ welfare  6,546 0.1%  10,871 0.1%

Charity and donation  957 0.0%  844 0.0%

Providers of long term finance as financial charges  488 0.0%  1,749 0.0%

 9,571,111 100.0%  7,778,866 100.0%

Retained within the business  (67,535) -0.7%  232,109 2.90%
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14%
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4% 5%
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Pattern of Shareholding
As on September 30,  2024
	
1.1 Name of the Company Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited
2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at  September 30, 2024
2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
670  1  100 16,926
237  101  500 59,349
96  501  1,000 73,960
149  1,001  5,000 361,404
29  5,001  10,000 215,741
8  10,001  15,000 97,046
6  15,001  20,000 107,111
4  20,001  25,000 91,539
1  25,001  30,000 27,589
2  30,001  35,000 66,651
1  35,001  40,000 36,050
3  45,001  50,000 145,549
3  55,001  60,000 177,500
1  65,001  70,000 65,170
1  70,001  75,000 74,305
1  85,001  90,000 85,376
3  95,001  100,000 296,485
1  100,001  105,000 104,000
1  105,001  110,000 107,549
1  120,001  125,000 122,000
1  205,001  210,000 206,336
1  240,001  245,000 244,000
1  315,001  320,000 319,000
1  345,001  350,000 350,000
1  390,001  395,000 394,500
1  580,001  585,000 582,169
1  1,000,001  1,005,000 1,000,582
1  1,045,001  1,050,000 1,047,530
1  1,150,001  1,155,000 1,151,335
1  1,595,001  1,600,000 1,600,000
1  3,175,001  3,180,000 3,175,816
1  21,725,001  21,730,000 21,725,885
1230 34,128,453

							     
2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage

2.3.1  Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children 3,500 0.010%
2.3.2  Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties. (Parent Company) 21,725,885 63.659%
2.3.3  NIT and ICP 1,005,239 2.945%
2.3.4  Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions. 5,871 0.017%
2.3.5  Insurance Companies 731 0.002%
2.3.6  Modarabas and Mutual Funds 0 0.000%
2.3.7  Shareholders holding 10% or more 21,725,885 63.659%
2.3.8  General Public

a. Local 7,117,480 20.855%
b. Foreign 690 0.002%

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
-  Investment Companies 2,425 0.007%
-  Joint Stock Companies 4,146,907 12.151%
-  Pension Funds 99,459 0.291%
-  Others 20,266 0.059%
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Categories of Shareholding
Required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) 
As on September 30,  2024

Sr. No. Name No. of Shares Held Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):

1 Cane Processing (Pvt.) Limited (CDC) 21,725,885 63.6592%

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)  -- --

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):  

1 Mr. Syed Anwar Hussain Shahid (CPL Nominee)  -- --

2 Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg  500 0.0015%

3 Mr. Amjad Javed Aftab (CPL Nominee)  -- --

4 Mr. Ghias-ul-Hasan  (CPL Nominee)  2,500 0.0073%

5 Mr. Saif-ur-Rehman (CPL Nominee)  -- --

6  Ms. Faiza Iftikhar  500 0.0015%

Executives:  1,603 0.0047%

Public Sector Companies & Corporations:  -- --

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance  106,061 0.3108%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders Holding Five Percent or more Voting Intrest in the Listed Company (Name Wise Detail);

Sr. No. Name Holding Percentage

1 Cane Processing (Pvt.) Limited (CDC) 21725885 63.6592%

2 Mrs. Ghazala Amjad (CDC) 3175816 9.3055%

All Trades in the Shares of the Listed Company, Carried Out by its Directors, 
Chief Executive Officer, their Spouse and Minor Children shall also be Disclosed:

Sr. No. Name                                                                          Sale Purchase

Nil  -    -  

 93 JSML Annual Report 2024 | 



Financial
Statements





96  | Financial Statements 

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at September 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including material accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information 
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan 
and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true 
and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at September 30, 2024 and of the profit  and other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion	

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Following are the Key audit matters:

S.No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

1 Additions to Property, Plant & Equipment

Refer notes 4.8 and 5 to the financial statements. The 
Company has made significant capital expenditure 
on sugar machinery parts.

We identified additions to property, plant and 
equipment as a key audit matter because there is a 
risk that amounts being capitalized may not meet 
the capitalization criteria with related implications on 
depreciation charge for the year.

	Our audit procedures to assess the addition to property, plant 
and equipment, amongst others, included the following:

	� 	obtained an understanding of the design and 
implementation of management controls over 
capitalization and testing control over authorization of 
capital expenditure and accuracy of its recording in the 
system;

	� 	performed testing, on sample basis, the costs incurred with 
supporting documentation and contracts;

	� 	assessed the nature of costs incurred for the capital projects 
through testing, on sample basis, of amounts recorded and 
considering whether the expenditure meets the criteria for 
capitalization as per the applicable accounting standards; 
and

	� inspected supporting documents for the date of 
capitalization when plant & machinery was ready for its 
intended use to assess whether depreciation commenced 
and further capitalization of costs ceased from that date 
and assessing the useful life assigned by management 
including testing the calculation of related depreciation.
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S.No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

2 Valuation of stock-in-trade

Refer to notes 4.12 and 9 to the financial statements.

The balance of stock-in-trade as at September 
30, 2024 was Rs. 2,902,289,704 million.

We identified valuation of stock-in-trade as a key 
audit matter as it involves significant management 
judgement in determining the carrying value of 
stock-in-trade.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following:

	� 	assessed the appropriateness & consistency of Company’s 
accounting policy for valuation of inventories and 
compliance of the policy with the requirements of the 
prevailing accounting standards;

	� 	obtained an understanding of internal controls over 
valuation of inventories and performed test of control on 
a sample basis, to test the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness;

	� 	performed substantive procedure over purchases and 
consumptions;

	� 	re-calculated the value of stock in trade by allocating the 
fixed and variable overheads and reviewed the adequacy 
of costing methodology;  

	� 	performed cut-off procedures and subsequent stock count 
to validate the completeness and existence of closing 
stock;

	� 	assessed reasonableness management’s determination of 
net realizable value (NRV) and the key estimates adopted 
and compared on sample basis cost of inventories with 
their respective net realizable value (NRV);

	� assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the financial 
statements to be in accordance with the applicable 
accounting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual 
report for the year ended September 30, 2024, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Other 
Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control 
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	� 	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

	� 	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control. 

	� 	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

	� 	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) 		Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) The statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s
business; and

d) Zakat deductible at source under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980) was deducted by the Company and deposited
in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Ibne Hassan.

Place: Lahore	 UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
Date: January 06, 2025	 Chartered Accountants

(Mr. Ibne Hassan)UDIN:  AR202410300p2Qg8tsiq
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 10,272,237,185  9,814,896,493 
Intangible assets 6 34,934  52,141 
Long-term deposits 7 5,257,309  3,090,642 

10,277,529,428  9,818,039,276 

Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 8 194,302,810  298,492,859 
Stock-in-trade 9 2,902,289,704  1,524,695,100 
Loans and advances 10 315,758,748  294,337,722 
Trade debts 11 53,027,788  5,569,558 
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 12 155,885,109  83,850,773 
Other receivables-unsecured considered good 13 22,220,756  22,220,756 
Tax refunds due from the Government 14 186,811,325  94,348,259 
Short term investments 15 14,861,932  14,870,771 
Cash and bank balances 16 221,488,103  80,517,758 

4,066,646,275  2,418,903,556 
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 1,177,344,911 883,432,757 
Unclaimed dividend 1,796,657 1,639,700 
Accrued mark-up 18 117,885,795 99,699,786 
Short term borrowings 19 2,702,235,676 1,276,442,928 
Current portion of:
-Liabilities against assets subject to lease-secured 20  603,227  726,906 
Provision for taxation 21 100,956,359 90,129,350 

4,100,822,625  2,352,071,427 

Working capital employed (34,176,350)  66,832,129 
 10,243,353,078  9,884,871,405 

Contingencies and commitments 22

Non-current liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject to lease-secured 20  790,445  2,233,444 
Deferred liabilities 23  900,644,947  1,017,709,692 

 901,435,392  1,019,943,136 
Net capital employed  9,341,917,686  8,864,928,269 

Represented by:
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 24  341,284,530  341,284,530 
Capital reserve - share premium  372,402,633  372,402,633 
Loan from sponsors 25  1,383,835,718  874,597,678 
Revenue reserve - Accumulated profits  1,081,199,128  1,000,143,786 
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - net of tax 26  6,163,195,677  6,276,499,642 

 9,341,917,686  8,864,928,269 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position
As at September 30, 2024

Lahore:
December 24, 2024 Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended September 30, 2024

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

Sales - net 27 7,996,451,611 6,925,893,103 

Cost of sales 28 (6,987,145,562) (5,851,908,072)

Gross profit 1,009,306,049 1,073,985,031 

Operating Expeses

Distribution cost 29 24,165,731 29,748,210 

Administrative expenses 30 237,693,028 211,487,319 

 (261,858,759)  (241,235,529)

Operating profit 747,447,290 832,749,502 

Finance cost 31  (949,094,324)  (560,136,336)

Other income 32 173,574,207 8,324,997 

Other expenses 33  (5,333,597)  (14,700,278)

(Loss)/Profit before taxation and levy (33,406,424) 266,237,885 

Levy 4.3 & 34 (86,087,638) (57,359,979)

(Loss)/Profit before taxation (119,494,062) 208,877,906 

Taxation 34  121,373,892  3,354,939 

Profit after taxation 1,879,830 212,232,845 

Earning per share - basic and diluted 35 0.06 6.22 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore:
December 24, 2024 Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2024

2024 2023

 Rupees  Rupees 

Profit after taxation 1,879,830 212,232,845 

Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to retained earnings account

Gain on revaluation of land, building and plant & machinery - net of tax  -    -   

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,879,830 212,232,845 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore:
December 24, 2024 Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended September 30, 2024

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

Cash flow from operating activities

(Loss)/Profit before taxation and levy  (33,406,424) 266,237,885 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 5.1.1  308,438,997 302,045,291 

Amortization 6.3  17,207 25,682 

Provision for Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWF) 33  5,324,758  - 

Provision for Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 33  -  14,012,520 

Finance cost 31  949,094,324 560,136,336 

Expected credit loss 30  4,823,935  - 

Government grant  -  (1,191,051)

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment          5.1.5  (2,934,941) 558,530 

 1,264,764,280 875,587,308 

Operating profit before working capital changes  1,231,357,856 1,141,825,193 

Working capital changes

Stores, spare parts and loose tools  104,190,049  (76,865,142)

Stock-in-trade  1,377,594,604)  48,669,953 

Loans and advances  (21,421,026)  40,357,967 

Trade debts  (52,282,165)  373,356 

Trade deposits and short term prepayments  (72,034,336)  (80,522,240)

Trade and other payables  301,153,105  155,840,517 

Unclaimed dividend  156,957  (241,643)

 (1,117,832,020)  87,612,768 

Cash generated from operations  113,525,836 1,229,437,961 

Tax and levy paid  (163,414,548)  (88,309,260)

WPPF paid  (14,012,520)  (14,258,545)

Finance cost paid  (928,932,920)  (518,845,530)

 (1,106,359,988)  (621,413,335)

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities  (992,834,152) 608,024,626 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore:
December 24, 2024 Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended September 30, 2024

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (768,575,607)  (605,429,932)

Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  5,730,859  2,551,269 

Long term deposits  (2,166,667)  (290,342)

Net cash used in from investing activities  (765,011,415)  (603,169,005)

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of long term finances - net  -  (9,429,947)

Lease rentals paid - net  (2,095,262)  (4,565,070)

Dividend paid  (34,128,453)  (34,128,453)

Proceeds from/(to) Sponsors' loan - net  509,238,040  (34,519,220)

Net cash used in financing activities  473,014,325  (82,642,690)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (1,284,831,242)  (77,787,069)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  (1,181,054,399)  (1,103,267,330)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  (2,465,885,641)  (1,181,054,399)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of following statement of 
financial position amounts:

- Short term investments 15  14,861,932  14,870,771 

- Cash and bank balances 16  221,488,103  80,517,758 

- Short term borrowings 19  (2,702,235,676)  (1,276,442,928)

 (2,465,885,641)  (1,181,054,399)

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore:
December 24, 2024 Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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1	 Reporting entity

1.1 	 Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited “the Company” (formerly known as Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited) was incorporated in 
Pakistan in 1968 under the repealed Companies Act 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are 
listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at 125-B, Quaid-e-Azam Industrial 
Estate, Gate No. 4, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore, and the mill is located at Jauharabad, District Khushab, Pakistan. The production 
plant is located at Industrial Area Jauharabad City District Khushab in the province of Punjab. The principal activity of the 
Company is manufacturing and sale of sugar and its by-products.

2	 Basis of preparation

2.1 	 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- 	 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

-	 Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

	Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and 
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 	 Basis of measurement		
These  financial statements have  been  prepared under historical cost convention except for the certain property, plant 
and equipment that are at revalued amounts.

	Other areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant 
to the financial statements are as follows.

- Estimation of net realizable value
- Computation of deferred taxation
- Disclosure of contingencies			 

		
3	 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses. The estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that 
are believed to be reasonable under circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making judgment about carrying 
value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

	

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s financial statements or where judgment was 
exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

3.1	 Property, plant and equipment
	The Company reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change 
in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment 
with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

3.2	 Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuers. Revalued amounts of 
non depreciable items are determined by reference to local market values and that of depreciable items are determined 
by reference to present depreciated replacement values.

3.3	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools
	The Company reviews the stores, spare parts and loose tools for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of stores, spare parts and loose tools 
with a corresponding effect on the provision.

3.4	 Stock-in-trade
	The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on a regular basis. Carrying amount of stock-in-trade is 
adjusted where the net realizable value is below the cost. Net realizable represents the estimated selling price less cost 
necessarily to be incurred for such sale.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.5	 Impairment
	The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets and cash generating units for possible impairment 
and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is any such indication.

3.6	 Taxation
	The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances 
where the Company’s view differs from the view taken by income tax department at the assessment stage and where the 
Company considers that its views on items of material nature is in accordance with the law, the amounts are shown as 
contingent liabilities.

3.7	 Impairment of trade debts, advances and other receivables
	The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected 
loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.		

	The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of time before the reporting date and 
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect 
current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the 
receivables.

3.8	 Provisions and contingencies	
The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on its judgment and the 
advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual 
outcome of these litigations and claims affect the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the balance sheet date.

3.9	 Expected credit loss
	ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original 
effective interest rate.

	The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated 
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical 
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. When 
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when 
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without 
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s 
historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.

	The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company 
is exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the assets.

	The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities and only with counterparties that 
have a good credit rating. The Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ratings. 
12-month and lifetime probabilities of default are based on historical credit ratings of the issuer.

	Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short 
maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the 
external credit ratings of the counterparties. The Company uses a similar approach for assessment of ECLs for cash and 
cash equivalents to those used for debt securities.

4	 Material Accounting Policies

4.1	 IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ - IFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue standards: IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 
11 ‘Construction Contracts, and the related interpretations on revenue recognition.
 
IFRS 15 introduces a single five-step model for revenue recognition with a comprehensive framework based on core 
principle that an entity should recognize revenue representing the transfer of promised goods or services under separate 
performance obligations under the contract to customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity 
expects to be entitled in exchange for those promised goods or services.

	Based on the assessment performed by the management, there is no significant impact of the changes laid down by IFRS 
15 on these financial statements of the Company.
		

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4.2	 IFRS 16 - Leases
IFRS 16 replaces the previous lease standard IAS 17 Leases. It resulted in almost all leases being recognized in the 
condensed interim statement of financial position, as the distinction between operating and finance leases has now been 
eliminated. Under the new standard, an asset and a lease liability to pay rentals are required to be recognized. The only 
exceptions are short term and low value leases.
 
Impact on financial position of the company
	The company has adopted IFRS 16 and it has no material impact on the company’s financial position as the only lease 
appearing is finance lease.			 
		

4.3		 Changes In Accounting Standards, Interpretation And Pronouncement		
	
4.3.1	 Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the 

year		
	There were certain amendments that became applicable for the Company during the year but are not considered 
to be relevant or did not have any significant effect on the Company’s operations and have, therefore, not been 
disclosed in these financial statements except that during the year certain amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of 
Financial Statements’ have become applicable to the Company which require entities to disclose their material 
accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting policies. These amendments to IAS have 
been introduced to help entities improve accounting policy disclosures so that they provide more useful information 
to investors and other primary users of the financial statements. These amendments have been incorporated 
in these financial statements with the primary impact that the material accounting policy information has been 
disclosed rather than the significant accounting policies. During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn Technical Release 27 ‘IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)’ and issued the 
‘IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes’ (the Guidance). Accordingly, in 
accordance with the Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting policy to recognize minimum and final 
taxes as ‘Levy’ under IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” which were previously being 
recognized as ‘Income tax’.			 
	
The Company has accounted for the effects of these changes in accounting policy retrospectively under IAS 8 
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and the corresponding figures have been 
restated in these unconsolidated financial statements. The effects of restatements are as follows:

Had there been Had there been 
no change in no change in 

accounting policyaccounting policy

Impact of change in Impact of change in 
accounting policyaccounting policy

After incorporating After incorporating 
effects of change in effects of change in 
accounting policyaccounting policy

(Rupees)

Effect on statement of profit or loss

For the year ended June 30, 2024 

Tax on export sales & turnover tax  -    (86,087,638)  (86,087,638)

Profit before tax  (33,406,424)  (86,087,638)  (119,494,062)

Taxation  35,286,254  86,087,638  121,373,892 

Profit after tax  1,879,830  -    1,879,830 

For the year ended June 30, 2023

Tax on export sales, dividend received & 
turnover tax  -    (57,359,979)  (57,359,979)

Profit before tax  266,237,885  (57,359,979)  208,877,906 

Taxation  (54,005,040)  57,359,979  3,354,939 

Profit after tax  212,232,845  -    212,232,845 

The related changes to the statement of cash flows with respect to the amount of profit before taxation have been 
made as well. There is no impact on profit after tax.			 
		

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4.4	 IFRS 9 - Financial instruments
	IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ – This standard replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification 
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial 
assets and hedge accounting. It also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment 
model included in IAS 39. The details of new significant accounting policies adopted and the nature and effect of the 
changes to previous accounting policies are set out below			 
		
4.4.1	 Classification and measurement of financial instruments		
		  IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial 

liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets of held to maturity, loans, 
receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets 
in the following measurement categories:

-	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value either through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCl), or 
through profit or loss (FVTPL); and		

- 	 those to be measured at amortized cost.

	The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows.
		
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as 
at fair value through profit or loss:	

-	 it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
-	 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on principal amount outstanding.
	

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method. Interest 
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition 
is recognized in profit or loss.			 
		
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. Net gains and 
losses are recognized in statement of other comprehensive income and dividend income is recognized in statement 
of profit or loss account.			 
		

4.4.2	 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective:
	The following revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), amendments and improvements with 
respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned 
below against the respective standard or interpretations:		

Standards or Interpretation
Effective date 

(beginning on or after)

Lack of exchangeability - Amendments to IAS 21 January 1, 2025

Classification and measurement of financial instruments - 
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

January 1, 2026

IFRS 18 - Presentation and disclosure in financial statements January 1, 2027
		

4.5	 Staff retirement benefits
	 Defined contribution plan	

	The Company operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme (the Fund) for its permanent employees. Equal 
monthly contributions are made to the fund both by the Company and employees at the rate of 10% of basic salary. The 
Company’s contribution is charged to the statement of comprehensive income.		
		

4.6	 Taxation		
	Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and loss account, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or below equity, in which case it is recognized in 
equity or below equity respectively.
		

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Current
	Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income, as adjusted for tax purposes, at the current rate of tax after taking 
into account all tax credits, rebates and available tax losses determined in accordance with prevailing tax laws. The charge 
for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising 
from assessments made during the year for such years. 

Deferred	
	Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date 
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all 
deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which deferred tax asset can be utilized, except where the deferred tax 
asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability that, at the 
time of transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable profits.

	The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilized.			 
	
	Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realized or the liability is settled, based on the rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date.

4.7	 Earnings per share (“EPS”)
	Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

	Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued 
on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit and loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares into ordinary shares.

4.8	 Property, plant and equipment

4.8.1	 Owned
Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any, except for freehold land which is stated at revalued amount, building and plant & machinery which 
is stated at revalued amount less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment losses, if 
any. Cost includes purchase cost together with any incidental expenses of acquisition. Depreciation on additions is 
charged from the month when the asset is available for use, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which 
the asset is disposed off. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss account at the rates specified in Note 5.1 to these 
financial statements using the reducing balance method unless specifically stated otherwise. Estimate of useful life 
of depreciable assets is based on assessment of industry trends, technical obsolescence and past experiences. 
Residual value and useful life of assets are reviewed, at each date of statement of financial position and adjusted 
expectations differ significantly from previous estimates.			 
	
	Surplus on revaluation is booked by restating gross carrying amounts of respective assets being revalued, 
proportionately to the change in their carrying amounts due to revaluation. The accumulated depreciation at the 
date of revaluation is also adjusted to equal difference between gross carrying amounts and the carrying amounts 
of the assets after taking into account accumulated impairment losses. The surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 
to the extent of the annual incremental depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and the 
depreciation based on the assets’ original  cost is transferred annually to retained earnings net of related deferred 
tax. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to retained 
earnings. All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account are net of applicable deferred income 
tax. 

Subsequent expenditure
	Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 
expenditure will flow to the Company.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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De-recognition
	Gain or loss arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of an asset and is charged to the profit or loss account.	
	
Capital work in progress
	Capital work in progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any, and includes the cost of material, 
labour and appropriate overheads directly relating to the construction, erection or installation of an item of operating 
fixed assets. These costs are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when related items become available for 
intended use.
		

4.8.2	 Leased
Right of use asset
	The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of the contract. The Company 
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is 
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease 
incentives received.		

	The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to 
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful 
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, 
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements 
of the lease liability.			 
	
	Where the Company determines that the lease term of identified lease contracts is short term in nature i.e. with a 
lease term of twelve months or less at the commencement date, right of use assets is not recognized and payments 
made in respect of these leases are expensed in the statement of profit or loss.
		
Lease liability
	Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the 
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

4.9	 Intangibles
Recognition and measurement
	Intangibles, with finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. 
Amortization is charged to profit or loss account using the reducing balance method over its useful life.

Subsequent expenditure 		
	Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset 
to which it relates. All other expenditure, is charged to profit or loss account as incurred.

De-recognition
	Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of intangibles are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are charged to the profit or loss account.

4.10	 Impairment
Financial assets
	The Company records impairment based on lifetime expected credit loss at the time of initial recognition of financial 
instrument at a default rate calculated using own historical credit loss experience and forward looking factors. However, 
in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information 
indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account 
any credit enhancements held by the Company.

Non-financial assets
	The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets is reviewed at each year end to determine whether there is 
any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine 
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the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in 
use. In the absence of any information about the fair value of a cash-generating unit, the recoverable amount is deemed 
to be value in use. Impairment losses are recognized as an expense in the statement of other comprehensive income.

4.11	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools
	These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined at average running cost. Items considered 
obsolete are carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. Cost is determined at average running cost.
		

4.12	 Stock in trade
These are valued at  lower  of  cost  and  net  realizable  value (NRV) except molasses, bagasse and VF cake which is 
valued at NRV. Cost in relation to raw material, work in process and finished goods represents average cost comprising 
direct material, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. NRV represents the estimated selling price less cost 
necessarily to be incurred for such sale. Cost is determined as follows;

Work-in-process: 		  At estimated cost
Finished goods - sugar:	 Lower of average cost and net realizable value				  

4.13	 Revenue recognition
	 According to the core principle of IFRS 15, the Company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods 

and services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled 
in exchange for those good and services. The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with that core principle by 
applying the following steps:	

- 	 Identify the contract with a customer;		
- 	 Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
- 	 Determine the transaction price;		
- 	 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract;	
- 	 Recognize revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

	Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, and represents amount receivable for goods 
supplied. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation (at a point of 
time) by transferring promised goods to customer being when the goods are invoiced and delivered to customers. This 
criteria of revenue recognition for its timing and amount is consistent with the previously adopted accounting standard 
therefore, the management concludes that the adoption of IFRS 15 does not have impact on the timing and amount of 
revenue recognition of the Company. 
	

4.14	 Borrowings and borrowing costs
	 	Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are included 

in current liabilities to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.
		
	Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of the 
borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such 
borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset up to the date of its commissioning.

4.15	 Provisions
	A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of past event, and it is probable that an out flow of resource embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
		

4.16	 Trade debts and other receivables
	These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and measured at fair value of 
consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit 
loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.	

4.17	 Trade and other payables
Liabilities of trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in 
future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

		
4.18	 Dividend	

	The dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the board 
of directors.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2024
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4.19	 Financial instruments
	Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the Company loses control of contractual rights that comprise the 
financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the profit or loss for 
the year. All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given 
and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost 
or cost as the case may be. The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in individual policy statement 
associated with each item.			 
	
	Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the 
Company or the counter party.			 
	

4.20	 Cash and cash equivalents
	Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of the statement 
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances, cheques in hand, deposits held at call with 
banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, running finance under 
mark-up arrangements and short term loans which form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
		

4.21	 Foreign currencies transactions
	Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing at 
the balance sheet date, except those covered by forward contracts, which are stated at contracted rates. Foreign currency 
transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates prevailing at the date of transaction except for those covered 
by forward contracts, which are translated at contracted rates. Non monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees on 
the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are determined. Exchange differences are included in income 
currently.			 
	

4.22	 Related party transactions
All transactions with related parties are carried out as arms’ length transactions by the Company using the methods 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017.

4.23	 Functional and presentation currency
	These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2024
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5.1.1	 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under:		

2024 2023

 Note Rupees Rupees

Cost of sales 28  302,270,217  296,004,385 

Administrative expenses 30  6,168,780 6,040,906 

 308,438,997  302,045,291 
	

5.1.2	 All assets are acquired with the funds of the Company and are held by and in the possession and control of the 
Company.			 
		

5.1.3	 The latest valuation of the Company's assets was carried out by Tristar International Consultant (Private) Limited  
as at September 30, 2022 and the forced sale value as at that date is given below: 		
	

 Amount in  Rupees 

Freehold land  3,313,781,280 

Building on freehold land  271,660,439 

Plant, machinery and equipment  3,951,342,560 

 7,536,784,279 

5.1.4	 Buildings, plant and machinery are located at freehold land measuring 497.68 Kanals located at industrial area 
Jauharabad City District Khushab. 

5.1.5	 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Particulars Cost
Net

Book Value
Sale

proceeds
Gain/ (loss)
on disposal

Mode
of Disposal

Name of 
purchaser

---------------------------- Amount in Rupees ----------------------------

2024

Vehicles

Honda Civic 
AGU-316  4,497,405  2,752,411  5,580,859  2,828,448  Sale 

 Amjad 
Mehmood-
Employee 

Sub total  4,497,405  2,752,411  5,580,859  2,828,448 

Office equipment

Having book value less 
than Rs. 500,000  124,500  43,507  150,000  106,493  Lost  Insurance 

Claim 

Total- 2024  4,621,905  2,795,918  5,730,859  2,934,941 

2023

Vehicles

Honda Civic 
LEE-19-903  3,830,818  2,036,049  1,935,599  (100,450)  Sale  Imran Ilyas-

Employee 

Suzuki Alto 
LE 19A 4884  1,342,085  616,875  445,585  (171,290)  Sale 

 Sikandar 
Ali-

Employee 

Sub total  5,172,903  2,652,924  2,381,184  (271,740)
Office equipment

Having book value less 
than Rs. 500,000  619,402  456,875  170,085  (286,790)  Sale  Employees 

Total- 2023  5,792,305  3,109,799  2,551,269  (558,530)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2024
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5.1.6	 If the freehold land, building and plant and machinery were measured using the cost model, the carrying amount 
would be as follows:

Particulars Cost Accumulated  
depreciation

Net book 
value

2024  -----------------(Rupees)------------------

Freehold land  29,414,310  -    29,414,310 

Building on freehold land  380,578,666  145,929,178  234,649,488 

Plant and machinery  3,976,784,055  1,179,212,701  2,797,571,354 

 4,386,777,031  1,325,141,879  3,061,635,152 

2023

Freehold land  29,414,310  -    29,414,310 

Building on freehold land  317,730,465  134,241,825  183,488,640 

Plant and machinery  3,274,355,737  1,056,476,193  2,217,879,544 

 3,621,500,512  1,190,718,018  2,430,782,494 

5.2	 Capital work-in-progres

Description Opening 
Balance

Additions 
During 

The Year

Transferred 
To/ (From)

Closing
Balance

2024  ---------------------------------(Rupees)--------------------------------------
Plant and machinery  369,883  -    -    369,883 

Advances for capital expenditure  1,423,350  -    -    1,423,350 

 1,793,233  -    -    1,793,233 

2023

Plant and machinery  490,561  -    (120,678)  369,883 

Advances for capital expenditure  5,992,450  -    (4,569,100)  1,423,350 

 6,483,011  -    (4,689,778)  1,793,233 

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

6	 Intangible assets

Software 6.1  34,934  52,141 

6.1 Software

Cost  1,100,000  1,100,000 

Additions during the year  -    -   

Disposal during the year  -    -   

Accumulated amortization 6.2  (1,065,066)  (1,047,859)

At the end of the year  34,934  52,141 

6.2  Amortization rate - % per annum

At beginning of the year  1,047,859  1,022,177 

Amortization for the year 6.3  17,207  25,682 

At the end of the year  1,065,066  1,047,859 

Amortization rate - % per annum 33% 33%

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2024
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2024 2023

 Note Rupees Rupees

6.3      Amortization for the year has been allocated as under:

Cost of sales 28  16,863  25,168 

Administrative expenses 30  344  514 

 17,207  25,682 

7	 Long-term deposits

This represents interest free deposits to sub-division canal officer for provision of utilities at plant and are refundable on 
disconnection of services.

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

8	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores  112,518,043  207,144,828 

Spare parts  78,685,511  88,465,570 

Loose tools  3,099,256  2,882,461 

 194,302,810  298,492,859 

9	 Stock-in-trade

Work-in-process  5,035,402  5,413,943 

Finished goods  2,897,254,302  1,519,281,157 

 2,902,289,704  1,524,695,100 

10	 Loans and advances

       Advances-considered good-unsecured

-Suppliers  65,325,144  140,091,809 

-LC margin  1,583,570  -   

-Employees  1,026,376  20,005,611 

-Agricultural loan 10.1  247,823,658  134,240,302 

 315,758,748  294,337,722 

10.1	 This represents interest free advances to sugarcane growers, which are adjustable against supply of sugarcane. 	
		

11	 Trade debts
			 

Local debtors considered good - unsecured  57,851,723  5,569,558 

Less: Expected credit loss  (4,823,935)  -   

 53,027,788  5,569,558 

Export debtors considered good - secured  -    -   

 53,027,788  5,569,558 

Expected credit loss

Opening balance  -    -   

Charge for the year  4,823,935  -   

Closing balance  4,823,935  -   
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

12	 Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Prepaid expenses 12.1 3,206,712  3,577,050 

Bank guarantee 12.2 50,000,000  -   

Others 12.3 102,678,397  80,273,723 

 155,885,109  83,850,773 

12.1	 This mainly includes insurance premiums.

12.2	 This bank guarantee is issued for supply of refined white sugar in favor of the Director, General Procurement (Army).

12.3	 This includes deposit of Rs. 75 million under protest against contended order passed by DGI regarding regularization of 
crushing capacity.

13	 Other receivables - unsecured considered good
		

Excise duty recoverable 13.1  10,500,922  10,500,922 

Export fund refund 13.2  2,746,250  2,746,250 

Special excise duty refundable 13.3  505,200  505,200 

Rebate receivable on export of sugar 13.4  8,323,540  8,323,540 

Sales tax refundable 13.5  144,844  144,844 

 22,220,756  22,220,756 

13.1	 This represents refund allowed by the Central Excise Appellate Tribunal, Lahore, in the light of criteria set up by the 
Supreme Court of Pakistan against Central Excise Duty paid during the season 1988-89. The Company’s legal counsel 
expects that case to be decided in the favour of the Company.

		
13.2	 This represents relief granted by the Lahore High Court against previous years’ demand. However the same is still 

pending for final adjudication. The Company’s legal counsel expects that case to be decided in the favor of the 
Company.			 
	

13.3	 This represents an amount paid under protest as 1% Special Excise Duty on the goods manufactured prior to Finance 
Bill 2007, whereas it was leviable on goods manufactured/ imported from July 01, 2007, vide Circular No. 1(3) FED 
2007 dated 28th August, 2007.The Company’s legal counsel expects that case to be decided in the favour of the 
Company.	

13.4	 This represents rebate receivable from Government against export of sugar.
	
13.5	 This represents sales tax amount recoverable against purchase/sale of goods.

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

14	 Tax refunds due from the Government

Opening balance 94,348,259  70,871,122 

Add: Tax deducted during the year 163,414,548  88,309,260 

Adjustments during the year  -    -   

Less: Adjusted against prior year taxes  (70,951,482)  (64,832,123)

186,811,325 94,348,259 

14.1	 This represents income tax refundable from government. The assessments of the Company have been completed for 
and up to financial year ended on September 30, 2023.
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

15	 Short term investments

Investment at fair value through profit or loss 15.1 14,861,932  14,870,771 
			 

 15.1	   This represents the investment made in debt securities of Soneri Bank Limited.

16	 Cash and bank balances		
	

Cash in hand 285,295  46,273 

Bank balances - Current accounts 218,415,266  79,396,859 

Bank balances - Saving accounts 16.1 2,787,542  1,074,626 

 221,488,103  80,517,758 

17	 Trade and other payables
			 

Trade Creditors 515,861,269 121,985,173 

Salaries and wages payable 28,162,512 25,551,121 

Accrued liabilities 33,268,239 26,623,160 

Advances from customers 17.1 326,522,614 567,573,140 

Income tax deducted at source 2,351,796 4,044,812 

Sugarcane cess payable 17.2 3,001,109 3,001,109 

Provident fund payable 1,223,665 790,858 

Sales tax payable 17.3 228,602,564 101,380,961 

Security deposit 30,225,048 17,115,377 

Workers’ Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 17.4 1,492,337 14,058,046 

Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWF) 17.5 5,324,758  -   

Other payable 17.6 1,309,000 1,309,000 

1,177,344,911 883,432,757 

17.1	 This represents advances received from customers for sale of sugar and by-products.		
		

17.2	 This represents sugarcane cess demanded by Cane Commissioner, Lahore against sugarcane purchased from Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa.

17.3	 This represents provision against pending cases of sales tax for the year 1999-2000 amounting to Rs. 3.44 million (2023: 
3.44 million) and sales tax payable for the month of August and September 2024 amounting to Rs. 224.83 million (2023: 
Rs. 80.50 million ).

17.4    Workers’ Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

Balance at beginning of the year  14,058,046  14,304,071 

Add: Charge for the year 34  -    14,012,520 

Interest on workers’ profit participation fund  1,446,811  -   

 15,504,857  28,316,591 

Less: Payments made to the fund during the year  (14,012,520)  (14,258,545)

Balance at end of the year  1,492,337  14,058,046 

17.5    Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWF)

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
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2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Charge for the year  5,324,758  -   

 5,324,758  -   

Less: Payments made during the year  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  5,324,758  -   

17.6	 This represents labor colony land at Jauharabad against which a case is pending with Housing and Physical Planning 
Department (PHATA), Jauharabad. On account of legal proceedings the management expects that the payment against 
this liability shall arise after September 30, 2024.

18     Accrued mark-up

Accrued mark-up on:

- Long term finances from banking companies-secured  21,346  61,452 

- Short term borrowings  117,864,449  99,638,334 

 117,885,795  99,699,786 

Sanction limit 2024 2023

‘Rupees in Million’ Note Rupees Rupees

19     Short term borrowings

Mark-up based borrowings from Conventional 
Banks

Running finance 350 19.1  346,237,676  329,460,281 

Cash finance 4,400 19.1  1,880,998,000  450,013,238 

Term Finance 550 19.1  475,000,000  33,333,333 

Islamic mode of financing

Murabaha/Istisna 1,975 19.2  -    263,651,676 

Agric Murabaha/Bai Salam 750 19.2  -    199,984,400 

8,025  2,702,235,676  1,276,442,928 

19.1	 These facilities have been obtained from various conventional banks to meet working capital requirements and are 
secured by charge over current and future assets (fixed and current) of the Company, pledge of sugar stock, lien over 
import documents and personal guarantees of sponsors and corporate guarantee of Cane Processing (Private) Limited 
(Holding Company). 

 
These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 3 month KIBOR + 2.00% to 3 months KIBOR + 2.50% per annum 
payable quarterly. The aggregate available short term funded facilities amounts to Rs. 5.30 billion (2023: Rs. 3.22 billion).

	

19.2	 These facilities have been obtained from various Islamic banks to meet working capital requirements and are secured 
by charge over current and future assets (fixed and current) of the Company, pledge of sugar stock, pledge of share 
of company, lien over import documents, and personal guarantees of sponsors and corporate guarantee of Cane 
Processing (Private) Limited (Holding Company).

	
	 These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging from matching KIBOR + 1.75% per annum to matching KIBOR + 2.50% 

per annum. The aggregate available short term funded facilities amount to Rs.2.73 billion (2023: Rs. 2.22 billion).

19.3	 The loans from sponsors of the Company are subordinated under subordination agreement.
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2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

20	 Liabilities against assets subject to lease - secured

Opening balance  2,960,350  6,285,096 

Add: Assets acquired during the year  -    -   

 2,960,350  6,285,096 

Less: Payments/adjustments  (1,566,678)  (3,324,746)

 1,393,672  2,960,350 

Less: Current portion  (603,227)  (726,906)

Closing balance  790,445  2,233,444 

20.1 	 The Company had entered into lease agreement with First Habib Modaraba for the two Units Honda Civic Oriel UG. 
Lease rentals were payable on monthly basis and includes finance cost at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 2.25 % per 
annum, which has been used as discounting factor. The Company had exercised the option and disposed the assets 
upon completion of lease period.

20.2 	 A reconciliation between the total of future minimum lease payments and their present values at year end is as follows:

2024 2023

Minimum 
Lease 

Payment

Present 
Value of 

Minimum 
Lease 

Payment

Financial
Chages

Minimum 
Lease 

Payment

Present 
Value of 

Minimum 
Lease 

Payment

Financial
Chages

---------------------(Rupees) --------------------- ---------------------(Rupees) ---------------------

Due with in one year 810,240 603,227 207,013 1,385,028 726,906 658,122

Due after one year but not later 
than five years

877,769 790,445 87,324 2,885,475 2,233,444 652,029

Due after five years - - - - - -

1,688,009 1,393,672 294,337 4,270,503 2,960,350 1,310,151

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

21	 Provision for taxation

Balance at beginning of the year  90,129,350  64,755,390 

Add: Provision for the year 34  86,087,638  90,129,350 

 176,216,988  154,884,740 

Less: Prior year adjustments/ payments  (75,260,629)  (64,755,390)

Balance at end of the year 21.1  100,956,359  90,129,350 

21.1    	Provision for current tax is calculated as per provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 at the applicable rates.

22	 Contingencies and commitments

22.1	    Contingencies		

The following are known contingencies as on September 30, 2024.

22.1.1 	 Since Federal Excise Duty (FED) is leviable on goods produced or manufactured, therefore, FED is not leviable on 
sale of sugar produced prior to the Finance Bill, 2011. Hence, FED amounting to Rs. 58.88 million has not been 
accounted for in these financial statements. The Company has filed a writ petition in the Honorable Lahore High 
Court against FBR show cause notice dated 19-09-2012 against the demand of Rs. 58.88 million.	
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22.1.2 	The Company has filed a writ petition against the amendments of Finance Act 2014 on “Alternate Corporate Taxes”, 
implication on Tax Year 2014 of Company against which  a demand of Rs.50.26 million has been established, the 
said amendments would not be implemented as the income realized was before the said amendments, amendments 
become applicable after July 1, 2014.		

 22.1.3 	The Company has filed an appeal and stay application before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-I) 
against demand of Rs. 82.16 million created by Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue vide order under 
section 161(1A)/205(3) which is decided in favour of the Company creating the demand of Rs.1.37 million. The 
Department has filed an appeal before ATIR against the decision.

	
22.1.4 	 The Additional Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has raised demand of Rs. 236.98 million u/s 122 (5A) of the 

Income Tax Ordinance. The Company filed appeal before CIR (A) on February 01, 2021 and received ordered on 
August 06, 2021, in which case was remanded back to ADCIR and additions of disallowance of tax credit of Rs. 3.87 
million u/s 65B and admissible deduction of Rs. 3.25 million u/s 174 (2) are held illegal. The Company filed appeal 
before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is pending for adjudication.		
	

22.1.5 	The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue levied penalty amounting to Rs. 1 million under section 33(25)  read with 
rule 150 ZQT (2) of the Sales Tax Act 1990. The Company has filed an appeal before CIR(A), which is pending for 
adjudication.			 
	

 22.1.6 	The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the tax demand of Rs. 
1,76 million, created vide assessment order under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, which was 
decided against the Company. The Company then filed appeal before the ATIR who upheld the decision of CIR 
(A). Therefore, the Company filed appeal to the Lahore High Court. The court remanded the case to the Appellate 
Tribunal of Inland Revenue (ATIR) for re-adjudication. The ATIR heard the case on 18.05.2023, and the case is 
pending for adjudication.

22.1.7 	 The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue has created tax demand amounting to Rs. 858,105 under section 
161(1A)/205(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Company has requested the Department to adjust the 
demand against the available refunds.	

 22.1.8 	Company had filed case of 2024 before the Honorable LHC, 50% Tax Demand was paid vide Lahore High Court 
Order. Hence, Proceedings are stayed. Final order of Lahore High Court is still pending. It is company’s legal 
consultant opinion that the Company has a strong case in its favour and there is every likelihood of the appeal 
being decided in its favour.

 22.1.9 	A case was filed before Lahore High Court and direction was given to pay 1/3rd amount of the tax and a postdated 
cheques for the 2/3rd was also required to be provided to LHC Registrar. Proceedings are stayed. Final order of 
Lahore High Court is still pending. It is company’s legal consultant opinion that the Company has a strong case in 
its favour and there is every likelihood of the appeal being decided in its favour.		
	

22.2		 Commitments
There are no known commitments as on September 30,2024 (2023: Nil).

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

23	 Deferred liabilities

Deferred taxation 23.1 900,644,947 1,017,709,692 

Deferred grant from Government 23.2  -    -   

 900,644,947  1,017,709,692 

23.1	Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

Surplus on revaluation of related assets 837,480,537 883,759,622 

Accelerated depreciation / amortization 414,149,784 335,109,781 

Worker’s Profit Participation Fund 3,556,234  58,145 

Leased assets  692,412  1,773,776 
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2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences arising in respect of: 

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  (394,425)  (858,502)

Tax credits / Unused tax losses  (354,839,595)  (202,133,130)

900,644,947 1,017,709,692 

23.1.1	 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:

At beginning of the year 1,017,709,692 1,053,910,735 

Recognized in statement of profit or loss:

Accelerated tax depreciation/amortization on fixed assets 79,040,003  68,254,847 

Incremental depreciation  (46,279,085)  (48,281,935)

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  (617,287)  520,731 

Worker’s Profit Participation Fund  3,498,089  58,145 

Tax credits / unused tax losses  (152,706,465) (56,752,831)

 (117,064,745) (36,201,043)

At end of the year 900,644,947 1,017,709,692 

23.2	 Deferred grant from Government

Opening balance  -    1,191,051 

Recognized during the year  -    -   

Grant amortized during the year  -    (1,191,051)

Closing balance  -    -   

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities  -    -   

 -    -   

24	 Share capital

2024 2023 2024 2023

Number Number Rupees Rupees

24.1 Authorized share capital

 70,000,000  70,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each  700,000,000  700,000,000 

24.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

 873,180  873,180 Shares allotted on reorganization of Kohinoor 
Industries Limited of Rs.10/- each

 8,731,800  8,731,800 

 125,008  125,008 Shares issued for cash of Rs. 10 each  1,250,080  1,250,080 

 13,651,899  13,651,899 Shares issued as fully paid bonus shares of 
Rs. 10/ -each

 136,518,990  136,518,990 

 7,905,650  7,905,650 Right shares of Rs. 10/- each  79,056,500  79,056,500 

 11,572,716  11,572,716 Issue of shares against loan from sponsors  115,727,160  115,727,160 

 34,128,453  34,128,453  341,284,530  341,284,530 

25	 Loan from sponsors			 
		

This represents interest free loan provided to the Company by its sponsors. These loans have been agreed to be repayable/
converted into equity at the Company’s discretion. Loan was repaid and received during the year to abridge the working capital 
requirements of the Company.
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

26	 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - net of tax

Land  4,112,812,290  4,112,812,290 

Buildings  249,113,060  249,113,060 

Plant and machinery  3,362,805,485  3,362,805,485 

7,724,730,835 7,724,730,835

Add: Addition in revaluation surplus

Land  -    -   

Buildings  -    -   

Plant and machinery  -    -   

 -    -   

Less: Accumulated incremental depreciation  (724,054,621)  (564,471,571)

 7,000,676,214  7,160,259,264 

Less: Deferred tax liability

Opening balance  883,759,622  932,041,557 

Tax on incremental depreciation for the year  (46,279,085)  (48,281,935)

837,480,537 883,759,622 

 6,163,195,677  6,276,499,642 

27	 Sales - net			 
			 

Sugar - local  7,937,960,500  6,521,683,250 

Sugar - export  241,702,083  329,496,971 

 8,179,662,583  6,851,180,221 

By-products:

-Molasses  967,644,998  1,037,167,530 

-Bagasse  177,112,434  115,057,488 

-Mud  10,915,231  13,945,284 

 1,155,672,663  1,166,170,302 

 9,335,335,246  8,017,350,523 

Less:

Sales tax  1,333,950,135  1,085,834,920 

Commission on sale  4,933,500  5,622,500 

 1,338,883,635  1,091,457,420 

 7,996,451,611  6,925,893,103 

28	 Cost of sales
			 

Sugarcane purchased and consumed  7,370,391,346  5,002,121,170 

Salaries, wages and other benefits 28.1  224,919,259  188,146,438 

Chemicals and stores consumed  103,953,677  91,467,316 

Packing material consumed  64,914,745  54,687,255 

Fuel and power  26,649,584  29,616,369 

Repairs and maintenance  86,733,960  102,421,631 

Workers’ welfare expense  1,562,440  5,078,972 

Insurance  9,516,668  9,522,478 
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

Vehicle running and maintenance  17,106,747  16,039,961 

Travelling and conveyance  3,637,250  3,633,094 

Carriage and freight  239,220  923,900 

Rent rate and taxes  600,053  876,041 

Printing and stationery  52,154  733,585 

Depreciation 5.1.1  302,270,217  296,004,385 

Amortization 6.3  16,863  25,168 

Other factory expenses  2,038,193  1,940,356 

 8,214,602,376  5,803,238,119 

Opening work-in-process  5,413,943  3,115,111 

Closing work-in-process 9  (5,035,402)  (5,413,943)

378,541 (2,298,832)

Cost of goods manufactured  8,214,980,917  5,800,939,287 

Opening stock of finished goods  1,519,281,157  1,570,249,942 

Molasses purchased  150,137,790  -   

Closing stock of finished goods 9  (2,897,254,302)  (1,519,281,157)

 (1,227,835,355) 50,968,785 

 6,987,145,562  5,851,908,072 

28.1	 This includes Company’s contributions to provident fund amounting to Rs. 3,546,786 (2023: Rs.2,245,728).

29	 Distribution cost
	

Salaries, wages and other benefits 29.1  14,928,267  13,325,399 

Communication  96,980  117,688 

Vehicles running and maintenance  40,640  114,900 

Freight and clearing charges on exports  818,506  7,151,660 

Miscellaneous 29.2  8,281,338  9,038,563 

 24,165,731  29,748,210 

29.1	 This includes Company’s contributions to provident fund amounting to Rs. 192,131  (2023: Rs. 147,758).

29.2	 This includes polythene sheets for open godowns.

30	 Administrative expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits 30.1  171,675,066  153,242,086 

Staff welfare  4,983,483  5,791,830 

Legal and professional charges  8,514,372  9,404,417 

Rent, rate and taxes  3,430,961  6,245,944 

Fuel and power  7,446,867  3,296,044 

Vehicles running and maintenance  4,468,498  6,602,671 

Travelling and conveyance  825,646  2,005,701 

Printing and stationery  392,385  1,053,237 

Telecommunication  3,660,571  2,999,374 

Repair and maintenance  1,679,307  58,321 
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

Postage and telegrams  384,648  416,124 

Advertisement  439,250  563,000 

Auditor’s remuneration 30.2  4,371,500  3,402,000 

Charity and donations  30.3  957,400  844,347 

Depreciation 5.1.1  6,168,780  6,040,906 

Amortization 6.3  344  514 

Insurance  12,953,987  8,869,859 

Expected credit loss  4,823,935  -   

Miscellaneous  516,028  650,944 

 237,693,028  211,487,319 

30.1	 This includes Company’s contributions to provident fund amounting to Rs.2,209,512  (2023: Rs. 1,699,223).

30.2	 Auditor’s remuneration

Annual audit fee  1,400,000  945,000 

Half yearly review  262,500  157,500 

Other services  2,709,000  2,299,500 

 4,371,500  3,402,000 

30.3	 None of the Directors of the Company or any of their spouse have any interest in charity and donations.

31	 Finance cost

Mark-up on lease liability  488,478  1,748,962 

Mark-up on short term borrowings  937,319,533  546,184,263 

Bank commission on exports  4,291,551  5,835,354 

Interest on Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 17.4  1,446,811  -   

Bank charges  5,547,951  6,367,757 

 949,094,324  560,136,336 

32	 Other income 

Miscellaneous 32.1  36,944,866  6,555,190 

Forfieture of advances 32.2  119,700,000  -   

Scrap sale  13,994,400  -   

Government grant 23.2  -    1,191,051 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5.1.5  2,934,941  -   

Foreign currency exchange gain  -    578,756 

173,574,207 8,324,997 

32.1	 This comprises of return on short term investment and interest received on saving accounts maintained with banks.

32.2	 The customers’ advance payments of 119 million were forfeited due to their refusal to purchase sugar, as market prices 
were lower than the contracted price, in accordance with the non-refundable terms of the agreement.
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees

33	 Other expenses 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment           -    558,530 

Fair value loss on investment  8,839  129,228 

Workers’ Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 17.4  -    14,012,520 

Other expenses  5,324,758  -   

5,333,597 14,700,278 

			 

34	 Levy and taxation

Income tax

Current year 34.1  86,087,638  90,129,350 

Prior year 34.3  (4,309,147)  76,733 

81,778,491  90,206,083 

Deferred tax  (117,064,745) (36,201,043)

Tax expense including levy  (35,286,254)  54,005,040 

Levy  (86,087,638)  (57,359,979)

Tax expense excluding levy  (121,373,892)  (3,354,939)

34.1	 Provision for current taxation is based on minimum tax at the rate of 1.25% of net revenue under section 113 of Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001, excess of minimum tax over normal tax liability shall be carry forward for next three years and shall 
be adjusted against normal tax liability. However, the tax credit for the year 2021 has lapsed.		
	

34.2	 The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not been presented in these 
financial statements, as the total income of the Company falls under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, and 
the deferred tax asset was also recorded on unadjusted tax credit under section 113.		
		

34.3	 The provision for current year tax represents tax on taxable income, net of tax credits. As per management’s assessment 
the provision for tax made in the financial statements is sufficient. Tax assessment for the year 2023 is finalized, a 
comparison of income tax provision of last three years with tax assessment is presented below: 

Years
Tax Provision as per 

Financial Statements
Tax as per 

Assessment
Prior Period 
Adjustment

Rupees Ruppees Rupees

2022 64,755,390 64,832,123 76,733

2023 90,129,350 85,820,203 (4,309,147)

2024 86,087,638 - -

35	 Earnings per share

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

35.1  Earnings per share - basic

Profit after taxation attributable to members  Rupees 1,879,830 212,232,845 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares  Number 34,128,453 34,128,453 

Earnings per share - basic  Rupees 0.06 6.22 

35.2  Earning per share - diluted
	There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in 
issue as at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023.
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36	 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Director and Executives 			

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including all benefits, to the Chief 
Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company is as follows:

Directors

Executives
Chief Executive

Executive
Directors

Non - Executive
Directors

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

-------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------

Managerial 
remuneration  3,564,000  3,564,000  3,300,000  3,300,000  -  -  48,801,715 33,504,093 

Utilities  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 3,564,000  3,564,000  3,300,000  3,300,000  -  -  48,801,715 33,504,093 

Number of key 
executives /non - 
executives 1 1 1 1 5 5 26 17

36.1	 The Chief Executive does not hold any shares in the Company.

36.2	 Executives are employees whose basic salaries exceed Rs. 1.2 million (2023: 1.2 million) in a financial year.

36.3	 The Company’s contributions to provident fund of Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Executives are amounting to 
Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. Nil), Rs. 115,500 (2023: Rs. 115,500) and Rs. 1,457,054 (2023: Rs. 997,410) respectively.

37	 Operating segments

37.1	 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

37.2	 Revenue from sale of sugar represents 89.05% (2023: 84.72%) of the total revenue of the Company.

37.3		 The Company sold sugar in Pakistan and Afghanistan (2023: Pakistan, Afghanistan and Tajikistan). 

37.4	 Sale of sugar includes 97.05% (2023: 94.39%) that relates to customers in Pakistan. 

37.5	 All assets of the Company as at September 30, 2024 are located in Pakistan.

38	 Financial risk management 			

The Company is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Company’s financial assets and liabilities by 
category are summarized in note 38.5. The main types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

The Company’s risk management is conducted by the Board of Directors. The Company focuses on securing its cash flows 
& minimizing its exposure to financial markets. The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for 
speculative purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the company is exposed are described below:

38.1	 Credit risk
		Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by 
failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 5,257,309  3,090,642 

Trade debts 53,027,788  5,569,558 

Loans and advances 250,433,604 154,245,913 

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 102,678,397 80,273,723 

Short term investments 14,861,932  14,870,771 

Bank balances 221,202,808 80,471,485 

647,461,838 338,522,092 
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	 Counterparties without external credit ratings
		

38.1.1  Trade debts - considered good
	 Majority of the company’s revenue are on advance basis and all the trade debts at the statement of financial 

position date represents domestic parties.
		

	 The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is:

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Upto 90 days  36,998,027  5,386,622 

91 - 180 days  1,548,392  182,936 

181 - 365 days  19,045,303  -   

Above 365 days  260,001  -   

57,851,723 5,569,558 

Allowance for expected credit loss  (4,823,935)  -   

53,027,788 5,569,558 

	 38.1.2  Impairment of financial assets
The Company continually monitors the credit quality of its receivables and provides for any impairment. The 
Company is not exposed to any substantial credit risk that has not been provided for.	
	
Counterparties with external credit ratings			 
				  
Credit risk is considered minimal since the counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined 
by various credit rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties 
and considering their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these 
counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Following are the credit ratings of counterparties with 
external credit ratings:

 Rating  Rating 2024 2023

Short term  Long term Agency Rupees Rupees

Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited  A1 A+ VIS  1,028,335  5,960,323 

Allied Bank Limited  A1+ AAA PACRA  51,043  27,779 

Bank Alfalah Limited  A1+ AA+ PACRA  4,978,785  39,536 

Dubai Islamic Bank  A1+ AA JCR-VIS  636,167  636,168 

Faysal Bank Limited  A1+ AA PACRA-VIS  23,352,985  2,095,921 

Habib Bank Limited  A1+ AA+ VIS  33,246,459  1,846 

JS Bank Limited  A1+ AA PACRA  2,478  3,098 

MCB Bank Limited  A1+ AAA PACRA  36,058,761  19,042,728 

MCB Islamic Bank Limited  A1 A+ PACRA  58,450,889  35,487,919 

Meezan Bank Limited  A1+ AAA VIS  20,050,819  10,599,999 

National Bank Of Pakistan  A1+ AAA PACRA-VIS  229,609  567,255 

Soneri Bank Limited  A1+ AA- PACRA  8,487,041  486,235 

United Bank Limited  A1+ AAA VIS  29,008,878  3,229,115 

Askari Bank Limited  A1+ AA+ PACRA  1,241,640  771,718 

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited  A1+ AA+ PACRA  4,008,680  1,035,678 

Summit Bank Limited  - - VIS  8,963  9,810 

Finca Microfinance Bank Limited  A3 BBB+ PACRA  361,276  476,357 

 221,202,808  80,471,485 
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38.2	 Liquidity risk
	Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities.

The Company’s approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

38.2.1	 Exposure to liquidity risk
The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the 
remaining period at year end.

2024

Carrying  
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Less than  
1 year

More than 
 1 year but less 

than 5 year

----------------------------Amount in Rupees---------------------------

Long-term finances  -    -    -    -   

Unclaimed dividend  1,796,657  1,796,657  1,796,657  -   

Trade and other payables  850,822,297  850,822,297  850,822,297  -   

Mark-up accrued  117,885,795  117,885,795  117,885,795  -   

Short term borrowings  2,702,235,676  2,702,235,676  2,702,235,676  -   

Lease liability  1,393,672  1,688,009  810,240  877,769 

 3,674,134,097  3,674,428,434  3,673,550,665  877,769 

2023

Long-term finances  -    -    -    -   

Unclaimed dividend  1,639,700  1,639,700  1,639,700  -   

Trade and other payables  315,859,617  315,859,617  315,859,617  -   

Mark-up accrued  99,699,786  99,699,786  99,699,786  -   

Short term borrowings  1,276,442,928  1,276,442,928  1,276,442,928  -   

Lease liability  2,960,351  4,240,503  1,385,028  2,855,475 

 1,696,602,382  1,697,882,534  1,695,027,059  2,855,475 

The Company’s current ratio is 0.99 (2023: 1.03). The Company arranged facility from different conventional and Islamic 
financial institutions to meet its working capital requirements.

38.3	 Market risk
	Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect 
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return. Market risk comprises 
of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

38.3.1	 Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises from sales, purchases and resulting balances that are 
denominated in a currency other than functional currency. The Company’s potential currency exposure comprises 
of:

- Transactional exposure in respect of non-functional currency monetary items.
- Transactional exposure in respect of non-functional currency revenues.

The potential currency exposures are discussed below:		

	Transactional exposure in respect of non-functional currency monetary items
	Monetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of 
the Company are periodically restated to rupee equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to the profit and loss 
account. The foreign currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk management strategy.
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	Transactional exposure in respect of non-functional currency revenues	
	Monetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional currency 
of the Company are periodically restated to rupee equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to the profit 
and loss account. The foreign currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk management 
strategy.	

Exposure to currency risk		
	The Company’s exposure to currency risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2024 2023

USD USD

Export debtors considered good - secured  -    -   

Exchange rates applied during the year

The following exchange rate has been applied during the year on transactions involving foreign currency.

Reporting date rate
Average rate for 

the year

Buying Selling

---------------------------- PKR/USD ----------------------------

Exchange rate during the year on transactions 2024

involving foreign currency 278.5 280 279.43

Exchange rate during the year on transactions 2023

involving foreign currency 288 287.98 287.99

Sensitivity analysis
At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the foreign currencies with all other variables held constant, 
profit for the year would have been higher by the amount shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain 
on translation of export debtors.

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Effect on Profit or Loss

Effect on Profit or Loss  -   -  

The weakening of the PKR against foreign currencies would have had an equal but opposite impact on the 
profit.	
	
The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit/(loss) for the year and assets/ liabilities 
of the Company.

38.3.2	 Interest rate risk
		  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes 

in market interest rates. Significant interest rate risk exposures are primarily managed by a mix of borrowings at 
variable interest rates. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s significant interest bearing 
financial instruments was as follows:

Effective interest rate Carrying amount

2024 2023 2024 2023

Percentage Percentage Rupees Rupees

Financial assets

Fixed rate instruments
Bank balances - saving accounts  5.00% to 9.50%  4.97% to 15.50%  2,787,542  1,074,626 
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Financial liabilities

Floating rate instrument

Long term loans from banking 
companies - secured

 22.49% to 24.91%  3% to 17.79%  -    -   

Short term borrowings  21.04% to 25.16%  17.77% to 26.48%  2,702,235,676  1,276,442,928 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments			 
			 
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss account.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for floating rate instruments		
	
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit or 
(loss) for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign 
currency rates, remain constant.	

Profit or loss 100 bp
Increase Decrease

------Amount in Rupees------

As at 30 September 2024
-Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities  (27,022,357)  27,022,357 

As at 30 September 2023
-Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities  (12,764,429)  12,764,429 

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets / 
liabilities of the Company.			 
	
Interest rate risk management
The Company manages interest rate risk through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap 
position can be adjusted. The short term borrowings and loans and advances by the Company have variable rate 
pricing that is mostly dependent on KIBOR as indicated in respective notes.

38.3.3	 Concentration of credit risk		
	Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of 
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure. 
The Company’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and all other transactions are entered into with 
credit-worthy counterparties there-by mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.
	

38.3.4	 Other price risk		
	Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). The Company believes 
that it is not exposed to other price risk.

38.4	 Capital risk management
	The Board’s policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 
to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital employed, which 
the Company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitor the 
level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are: 

(i)     	to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for 
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and		

	 (ii)   to provide an adequate return to shareholders.
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	The Company manages its capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the 
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example, adjust the amount 
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company monitors capital on the 
basis of the debt-to-equity ratio - calculated as a ratio of long term debt to equity.

The gearing ratio as at 30 September were as follows:

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

Debt  1,393,672  2,960,350 

Equity  9,341,917,686  8,864,928,269 

Total capital employed  9,343,311,358  8,867,888,619 

Gearing ratio 0.01% 0.03%

The company’s gearing ratio is similar to that of the previous year, due to its insignificant long-term borrowings.

38.5	 Accounting classifications and fair values

September 30, 2024 Carrying amount Fair value 

Fair value through 
profit or loss

Fair value 
through OCI

 At amortized 
cost 

 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets --------------------------------------------Amount in Rupees-------------------------------------------

Investment  14,861,932  -    -    14,861,932  14,861,932  -    -    14,861,932 

Long term deposits  -    -    5,257,309  5,257,309  -    -    -    -   

Trade debts  -    -    53,027,788  53,027,788  -    -    -    -   

Loan and advances  -    -    250,433,604  250,433,604  -    -    -    -   

Trade deposit and short 
term prepayments

 -    -    102,678,397  102,678,397  -    -    -    -   

Cash and bank  -    -    221,488,103  221,488,103  -    -    -    -   

 14,861,932  -    632,885,201  647,747,133  14,861,932  -    -    14,861,932 

Financial liabilities

Long term finances  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Liabilities against assets 
subject to finance lease  -    -    1,393,672  1,393,672  -    -    -    -   

Trade and other payables  -    -    850,822,297  850,822,297  -    -    -    -   

Unclaimed dividened  -    -    1,796,657  1,796,657  -    -    -    -   

Accrued mark-up  -    -    117,885,795  117,885,795  -    -    -    -   

Short term borrowings  -    -   2,702,235,676 2 ,702,235,676  -    -    -    -   

 -    -   3,674,134,097 3,674,134,097  -    -    -    -   

September 30, 2023

Financial assets 

Investment 14,870,771  -    -    14,870,771 14,870,771  -    -    14,870,771 

Long term deposits  -    -    3,090,642  3,090,642  -    -    -    -   

Trade debts  -    -    5,569,558  5,569,558  -    -    -    -   

Loan and advances  -    -    154,245,913  154,245,913  -    -    -    -   

Trade deposit and short 
term prepayments

 -    -    80,273,723  80,273,723  -    -    -    -   

Cash and bank  -    -    80,517,758  80,517,758  -    -    -    -   

 14,870,771  -    323,697,594  338,568,365  14,870,771  -    -    14,870,771 

Financial liabilities 

Long term finances  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Liabilities against assets 
subject to finance lease

 -    -    2,960,350  2,960,350  -    -    -    -   

Trade and other payables  -    -    315,859,617  315,859,617  -    -    -    -   

Unclimed dividend  -    -    1,639,700  1,639,700  -    -    -    -   

Accrued mark-up  -    -    99,699,786  99,699,786  -    -    -    -   

Short term borrowings  -    -   1,276,442,928  1,276,442,928  -    -    -    -   

 -    -   1,696,602,381  1,696,602,381  -    -    -    -   
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The aforementioned table presents assets and liabilities carried at fair value by valuation method. The different levels 
have been defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.		

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

2024 2023

Number Number

39	 Number of employees

Average number of employees for the year

Mills 782 864

Head Office 42 11

824 875

Total number of employees at year end

Mills 562 612

Head Office 41 11

603 623

2024 2023

M.Ton M.Ton

40	 Plant capacity and production

Cane crushing capacity (per day)  12,500  12,500 

Line-I (Non-operational)  3,000  3,000 

Line-II (Operational)  9,500  9,500 

2024 2023

M.Ton M.Ton

Operating days  103  103 

Effective crushing days  89  88 

Cane crushed  657,997  651,476 

Sugar production  64,874  64,198 

Recovery ratio 9.85% 9.86%

40.1	 Shortage in capacity utilization is mainly due to the less availability/supply of sugarcane at the start and end of crushing 
season which limits the operations of Mills below the crushing capacity.

41	 Related party transactions / balances

The related parties comprise directors of the Company, key employees, provident fund trust, associated undertakings and 
holding company. Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specially disclosed elsewhere 
in these financial statements are as follows:

This represents interest free loan provided to the Company by its sponsors. These loans have been agreed to be repayable/
converted into equity at the Company’s discretion. Loan was repaid and received during the year to abridge the working capital 
requirements of the Company.
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Party name 
Relationship and 

percentage of  
shareholding 

Transaction during the year and 
year end balances

2024                 
Rupees

2023                 
Rupees

Cane Processing Private 
Limited

Holding company holds 
63.63 % (2023: 63.63 %) 
share capital

Loan received during the year  -    -   

Loan repaid during the year  -    1,710,000 

Amount payable at year end  131,302,488  131,302,488 

Dividend paid  21,725,885  21,725,885 

Mrs. Ghazala Amjad
Chief Executive officer of 
holding company (Cane 
Processing Private 
Limited)

Loan received during the year  560,238,040  127,500,000 

Loan repaid during the year  61,000,000  160,309,220 

Loan transferred from short term 
liability  -    200,070,000 

Amount payable at year end  1,252,533,230  743,295,190 

Dividend paid  3,175,816  3,175,816 

Employee benefit-
Provident Fund Trust Employee benefit fund Provident fund contribution  5,948,429  4,092,709 

Chief Executive Key management 
personnel Remuneration paid  3,564,000  3,564,000 

Executive Director Key management 
personnel Remuneration paid  3,300,000  3,300,000 

Non-executive Director Key management
personnel Dividend paid  2,500  2,500 

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions.

2024             
Rupees 

(Un-audited)

2023             
Rupees 

(Audited)

42	 Employees Provident Fund Trust

The following information is based on the financial statements of Provident 
Fund Trust.

Size of fund - total assets Rupees  48,532,631  41,174,279 

Cost of investments made Rupees  26,050,000  26,050,000 

Percentage of investments made Percentage 53.68% 63.27%

Fair value of investment Rupees  26,050,000  26,050,000 

The break-up of cost of investments is as follows:

2024 2023

Rupees Percentage Rupees Percentage

Defence Saving Certificates  26,050,000 100.00%  26,050,000 100.00%

 26,050,000 100.00%  26,050,000 100.00%

The investments of the Provident Fund Trust are in compliance with the provision of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and 
the rules formulated for this purpose.
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43	 Shariah screening disclosure

2024 
Rupees

2024 
Rupees

2023 
Rupees

2023 
Rupees

 Conventional Shariah Compliant  Conventional Shariah 
Compliant

Long term borrowings  -    -    -    -   

Short term borrowings  2,702,235,676  -    812,806,852  463,636,076 

Bank balances  117,683,613  103,519,195  25,691,155  54,780,330 

Short term investment  14,861,932  -    14,870,771  -   

Revenue  -    7,996,451,611  -    6,925,893,103 

Other income
-Interest on saving deposits accounts 3,695,823  14,269,983  4,718  1,056,760 

-Return on investments  3,688,880  -    1,406,893  -   

-Exchange gain earned  -    -    -    578,756 

Mark-up paid  721,886,368  215,433,165  321,404,733  184,762,021 

Relationship with shariah compliant banks

Name Relationship at 
reporting date

2024 
Rupees 

 2023 
Rupees 

MCB Islamic Bank Limited  Bank Balance  58,450,889  35,487,919 

Faysal Bank Limited  Bank Balance  23,352,985  2,095,921 

Dubai Islamic Bank  Bank Balance  636,167  636,168 

Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited  Bank Balance  1,028,335  5,960,323 

Meezan Bank Limited  Bank Balance  20,050,819  10,599,999 

 103,519,195  54,780,330 

44	 Date of authorization for issue			

These financial statements have been authorized for issue on December 24, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.	

45	 General

45.1		 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

Lahore:
December 24, 2024 Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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